
1 of 2 
 

EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
April 9, 2015 

 
Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts___Longanecker ___Crooks___Cross___Troutner ___ Brown 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Agenda Approval 
5. City Council Meeting Minutes March 26, 2015 
 
Regular Agenda 
6. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

7. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
Business Requiring Action 
8. CONSIDER AGREEMENT BETWEEN JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, AND THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, FOR THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT OF EDGERTON ROAD & 
207TH STREET FROM 199TH STREET TO 207TH STREET AND ½ MILE WEST OF 
EDGERTON ROAD TO BNSF RAILROAD  

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
9. CONSIDER GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE PROPOSAL FOR WAVERLY ROAD 

PROJECT 
 

Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARING PUBLIC HEARING FOR FIRST AMENDMENT TO MASTER 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT RESOLUTION AMENDING A MASTER RESOLUTION OF 
INTENT 

 
11. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 04-06-15A CONSENTING TO THE AMENDMENT OF A 

MASTER RESOLUTION OF INTENT EVIDENCING THE CITY’S INTENT TO ISSUE 
ITS INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS FOR THE LOGISTICS PARK -- KANSAS CITY 
PROJECT 

 



2 of 2 
 

Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING FOR RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FIRST AMENDMENTS TO 

PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS 
 
13. CONSIDER RESOLUTION 04-09-15B AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO EXECUTE AND 

DELIVER A FIRST AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE ELHC I, 
ELHC IV, ELHC XI AND ELHC XII PROJECTS 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
14. Report by the City Administrator 

o Draft 2016 Budget Calendar 
o Presentation of Truck Route Analysis – April 23rd 
o Presentation of Animal Control Programs – April 23rd  
 

15. Report by the Mayor 
 
16. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 

• April 14th  7:00 PM – Planning Commission Meeting 
• April 15th Noon – Senior Lunch 
• April 23rd  7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 
• April 28th - Citywide Garage Sale 
• May 9th - Citywide Clean Up 
 

17. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ______ 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
March 26, 2015 

Page 1 
City of Edgerton, Kansas 

Minutes of City Council Regular Session 
March 26, 2015 

 
A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, Kansas 
on March 26, 2015.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Roberts presiding, and City Clerk 
Janeice L. Rawles recording. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

Charlie Troutner  present 
Clay Longanecker  present 
Frances Cross  present 
Cindy Crooks  present via phone 
Jody Brown  present 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance:              City Administrator Beth Linn 
    Community Development Director Kenny Cook 
    City Attorney Patrick Reavey 
                                

        Consultants in attendance:  Johnson County Sheriff’s Department 
          
2. WELCOME AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
• Agenda approval 
• City Council Meeting Minutes February 26, 2015 
• City Council Meeting Minutes March 12, 2015 

 Motion by Cross, seconded by Brown, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
   
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 Bill Braun, 102 E. Martin, was present to address the Mayor and council.  He would like an update 

on the truck route, he stated that the chip and seal on Second Street is mostly gone due to the big 
trucks.  He also asked about the traffic count and would like more information about it. 

 
 Shelly George, 412 E. McCarty, was present to address the Mayor and council.  Ms. George asked 

about the truck route and why something was not done before now. She also asked about the 
spay/neuter day.  She was informed the flyer for the spay/neuter day is posted on the front door of 
City Hall with all the information.  The last item that Ms. George questioned was the 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
March 26, 2015 

Page 2 
trap/neuter/release program.  She asked if the program was still in operation or if it had been 
discontinued.  The Mayor stated that at a workshop the council decided not to continue with the 
trap/neuter/release program.   

 
 Jeff Skidmore was present about items on the agenda. 
 
5. DECLARATIONS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
 None 
 
6. ORDINANCE NO. 996 ADOPTING A RECOMMENDATION BY THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION TO 

APPROVE REZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 25.07 ACRES OF LAND (LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF 
HOMESTEAD LANE AND NORTH OF INTERSTATE 35) IN EDGERTON, KANSAS FROM JOHNSON 
COUNTY RUR, RURAL ZONING TO CITY OF EDGERTON C-2, HEAVY SERVICE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
Kenneth Cook, Community Development Director, presented information to the Mayor and council 
about an application for rezoning from Paul V. and Marie E. Middleton requesting to rezone 
approximately 25.07 acres. This property was annexed into the City of Edgerton in January of 2015.  
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the application with the following stipulations: 
there must be a Site Plan where all requirements of the City shall be met; all infrastructure 
requirements shall be met; the property shall be developed in accordance with a Site Plan reviewed 
and approved by the City. 
 
Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Ordinance No 996 adopting a 
recommendation by the City Planning Commission to approve rezoning of approximately 25.07 
acres of land (located on the east side of Homestead Lane and north of Interstate 35) in Edgerton, 
Kansas from Johnson County RUR, rural zoning to City of Edgerton C-2, Heavy Service Commercial 
District.  
 
Motion was approved, 6-0 with the Mayor voting. 

 
7. ORDINANCE NO 997 ADOPTING A RECOMMENDATION BY THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION TO 

APPROVE REZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 63.35 ACRES OF LAND (LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF 
HOMESTEAD LANE AND SOUTH OF 199TH STREET) IN EDGERTON, KANSAS FROM JOHNSON 
COUNTY RUR, RURAL ZONING TO A COMBINATION OF CITY OF EDGERTON C-2, HEAVY SERVICE 
COMMERCIAL (19.38 ACRES) AND L-P, LOGISTICS PARK (43.97 ACRES) DISTRICTS WAS 
CONSIDERED. 
  
Kenneth Cook, Community Development Director, presented information to the Mayor and Council 
about an application for rezoning from Paul and Naomi Middleton requesting to rezone 
approximately 63.35 acres, this property was annexed into the City of Edgerton in January of 2015.  
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the application with the following stipulations: 
there must be a Site Plan where all requirements of the City shall be met; all infrastructure 
requirements shall be met; the property shall be developed in accordance with a Site Plan reviewed 
and approved by the City.   
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
March 26, 2015 

Page 3 
Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Ordinance No 997 adopting a 
recommendation by the City Planning Commission to approve rezoning of approximately 63.35 
acres of land (located on the east side of Homestead Lane and south of 199th Street) in Edgerton, 
Kansas from Johnson County RUR, Rural Zoning to a combination of City of Edgerton C-2, Heavy 
Service Commercial (19.38 acres) and L-P, Logistics Park (43.97 acres) districts. 
 
Motion was approved 6-0, with the Mayor voting 

 
8. REPORT BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 NONE 
 

9. REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
 
 The Mayor had no report, but requested Council member Troutner give a report on the Kansas Rural 

Water Association Conference.  Council member Troutner informed that he and Mike Mabrey, 
Utility Superintendent; Cody Ferris, public works employee; and Janeice Rawles, City Clerk, attended 
the conference this week.  Everyone that attended learned a lot and attended several different 
classes on different topics.  He thanked the City for allowing the attendees to have this valuable 
educational opportunity.  The Mayor stated that this year was the 48th year for the KRWA 
conference and it is the third largest in the nation. 

   
10. FUTURE MEETING/EVENT REMINDERS: 
 

• March 28th 9am to 1 pm – Low Cost Vaccine Clinic at 307 E. Nelson 
• April 7th Election Day 
• April 9th 7:00 pm – City Council Meeting 
• April 14th 7:00 pm-- Planning Commission Meeting 
• April 15th Noon – Senior Lunch 
• April 23rd 7:00 pm-- City Council Meeting 

 
 Mayor Roberts recessed the meeting for five minutes. 
 Meeting recessed at 7:27 pm. 
 Meeting reconvened at 7:34 pm. 
 Mayor Roberts called the meeting to order. 
 
11. RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (B) (4) FOR CONFIDENTIAL AND 

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION TO INCLUDE BOND COUNSEL, FINANCIAL ADVISOR AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Motion by Cross, seconded by Troutner to recess into executive session for confidential and 

proprietary information to include bond counsel, financial advisor, and city administrator for one 
hour. 

  
 Motion was approved, 5-0.   
 
 Meeting recessed at 7:38 pm. 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
March 26, 2015 

Page 4 
 Council member Crooks, attending by phone and stated that “no one else is present and that will 

continue for the remainder of the meeting.” 
 
 City Attorney Patrick Reavey left the meeting. 
 
 Motion by Cross, seconded by Brown, to reconvene the meeting, no action taken. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 8:38 pm. 
 
 Motion by Cross, seconded by Troutner, to recess into executive session for same reason and with 

the same people present for forty five minutes. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting recessed at 8:40 pm. 
 
 Motion by Cross, seconded by Brown, to reconvene the meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 9:25 pm. 
 
12. RESOLUTION 03-26-15A AMENDED AND RESTATED PROJECT AGREEMENT AND PUBLIC 

INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING PLAN FOR INTERMODAL FACILITY/LOGISTICS PARK KANSAS CITY 
WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to approve the amended and restated project 

agreement and public infrastructure financing plan for Intermodal Facility/Logistics Park Kansas City 
and to approve Resolution 03-26-15A with revisions to exhibit “C” and to include item #14. 

 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Council member Cross would like an update at the next meeting on the Railroad crossings at Nelson 

Street and 207th.  She indicated the smell is back at the Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
There will be information about this issue on the next agenda. 

 
13. ADJOURN 
 
 Motion by Cross, seconded by Troutner, to adjourn the meeting. 
 

Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 

 Meeting adjourned at 9:35 pm. 
 
  



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
March 26, 2015 

Page 5 
  
 
        ______________________________ 
        Janeice L. Rawles, CMC 
        City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 Approved by the Governing Body on ______________ 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Agreement Between Johnson County, Kansas, And The City Of Edgerton, 
Kansas, For The Public Improvement Of Edgerton Road & 207th Street From 199th Street To 207th 
Street And ½ Mile West Of Edgerton Road To BNSF Railroad 
 
Department:  Public Works 
  
Background/Description of Item: On July 10, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. 07-10-14A 
regarding the joint overlay project for Edgerton Road (207th Street to Nelson Street) and 207th Street 
(½ mile west of Edgerton Road to BNSF Railroad). The project is a joint project submitted by Johnson 
County and the City of Edgerton for 2015 County Assistance Road System (CARS). The project area is 
shaded green on the attached map.   
 
The CARS program provides funds to the cities of Johnson County to construct and maintain their major 
arterials. Each year the cities submit a 5-year road improvement plan to Johnson County. Using a scoring 
system, Johnson County selects projects and allocates funds. The County pays 50% of the project’s 
construction and construction inspection costs. Cities are responsible for design, right-of-way, and utility 
relocation costs. Types of projects eligible for the CARS program are: Capacity Improvements (additional 
lanes), Major Maintenance (overlays, patching), System Management (intersection improvements, traffic 
signals, turn lanes), Bridges (replacement or rehabilitation), and Route Enhancements (sidewalks, bike 
paths, lights.)  
 
Johnson County would administer the project and bid/let the project with their larger overlay project for 
2015. This would likely afford Edgerton a better price by bundling the project with other county 
roadways and not require Edgerton to oversee any administration of the project. Johnson County staff 
estimate the total project cost at $169,678. CARS program would fund 50% or $84,839. The remaining 
50% would be split evenly between Johnson County and Edgerton. The total cost for the project for 
Edgerton would be $42,419.50.  
 
Enclosed is the agreement with Johnson County for administration and payment of the project. City 
Attorney has reviewed and approved the agreement. Funding for this project was included in the 
approved 2015 Budget from the Special Highway Fund. The annual receipts of that fund match the 
funding needed for the project.  
 
Enclosure: Draft Agreement Between Johnson County, Kansas, and The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 
  Resolution 07-10-14A 
  Map 
  Special Highway Fund 2015 
  
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   
 
Recommendation:  Approve Agreement Between Johnson County, Kansas, And The City Of Edgerton, 
Kansas, For The Public Improvement Of Edgerton Road & 207th Street From 199th Street To 207th 
Street And ½ Mile West Of Edgerton Road To BNSF Railroad 
 



Funding Source: Special Highway Fund 
 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: April 6, 2015 



1 

Agreement between Johnson County, Kansas,  

and the City of Edgerton, Kansas, 

for the Public Improvement of Edgerton Road & 207
th

 Street 

from 199
th

 Street to 207
th

 Street and ½ mile west of Edgerton Road to BNSF 

Railroad 

(320001101) 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ______ day of ________________, 2015, 

by and among the Board of County Commissioners of Johnson County, Kansas ("Board"), and the 

City of Edgerton, Kansas ("City"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the parties have determined that it is in the best interests of the general public 

in making certain public improvements to Edgerton Road & 207
th
 Street from 199

th
 Street to 207

th
 

Street and ½ mile west of Edgerton Road to BNSF Railroad (the "Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Kansas authorize the parties to this Agreement to 

cooperate in undertaking the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing bodies of each of the parties have determined to enter into this 

Agreement for the purpose of undertaking the Project, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-2908 and 

K.S.A. 68-169, and amendments thereto; and 

 WHEREAS, the Project has been approved, authorized, and budgeted by the Board as an 

eligible project under the County Assistance Road System (“CARS”) Program; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has, by County Resolution No. 106-90, authorized its Chairman to 

execute any and all Agreements for County participation in any CARS Program project which has 

been approved and authorized pursuant to the Policies and Guidelines adopted by the Board and for 

which funding has been authorized and budgeted therefore; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of Edgerton did approve and authorize its Mayor to 

execute this Agreement by official vote of said body on the ______ day of 

____________________, 2015. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter 

contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

 



2 

1. Purpose of Agreement.  The parties enter into this Agreement for the purpose of 

undertaking the Project to assure a more adequate, safe, and integrated roadway network in 

the developing and incorporated areas of Johnson County, Kansas. 

 

2. Estimated Cost and Funding of Project 

a. The estimated cost of the Project (“Project Costs”), a portion of which is 

reimbursable under this Agreement is One Hundred Seventy Thousand 

Dollars ($170,000). 

b. Project Costs include necessary costs and expenses of labor and material 

used in the construction of the Project and construction inspection and 

staking for the Project. 

c. The Project Costs shall be allocated between the parties as follows: 

i. The Board shall provide financial assistance for the Project in 

an amount up to but not exceeding Fifty Percent (50%) of the 

Project Costs.  However, the Board's financial obligation 

under this Agreement shall be limited to an amount not to 

exceed Eighty Five Thousand Dollars ($85,000).  For 

purposes of this Agreement, Project Costs shall not include 

any portion of costs which are to be paid by or on behalf of 

any state or federal governmental entity or for which the 

Cities may be reimbursed through any source other than the 

general residents or taxpayers of the Cities.  Further, it is 

understood and agreed by the parties hereto that the Board 

shall not participate in, nor pay any portion of, the Costs 

incurred for or related to the following: 

1. Land acquisition, right-of-way acquisition, or utility 

relocation;  

2. Legal fees and expenses, design engineering services, 

Project administration, or financing costs; 

3. Taxes, licensing or permit fees, title reports, 

insurance premiums, exactions, recording fees, or 

similar charges; 



3 

4. Project overruns;  

5. Project scope modifications or major change orders 

which are not separately and specifically approved 

and authorized by the Board; and 

6. Minor change orders which are not separately and 

specifically approved and authorized by the Director 

of Public Works & Infrastructure of Johnson County, 

Kansas ("Public Works Director"). Minor change 

orders are those which do not significantly alter the 

scope of the Project and which are consistent with the 

CARS Program Policies and Guidelines and 

administrative procedures thereto adopted by the 

Board.  

It is further understood and agreed that notwithstanding the 

designated amount of any expenditure authorization or fund 

appropriation, the Board shall only be obligated to pay for the 

authorized percentage of actual construction costs incurred or 

expended for the Project under appropriate, publicly bid, 

construction contracts.  The Board will not be assessed for any 

improvement district created pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq., and 

amendments thereto, or any other improvement district created under 

the laws of the State of Kansas. 

ii. The City shall pay One Hundred Percent (100%) of all 

Project Costs not expressly the Board's obligation to pay as 

provided in this Agreement. 

 

3. Financing 

a. The Board shall provide financial assistance, as provided in Paragraph 2.c. 

above, towards the cost of the Project with funds budgeted, authorized, and 

appropriated by the Board and which are unencumbered revenues that are 

on-hand in deposits of Johnson County, Kansas.  This paragraph shall not be 

construed as limiting the ability of the Board to finance its portion of the 



4 

costs and expenses of the Project through the issuance of bonds or any other 

legally authorized method. 

b. The City shall pay their portion of the Project Costs with funds budgeted, 

authorized, and appropriated by the governing body of the City. 

 

4. Administration of Project.  The Project shall be administered by Edgerton acting by and 

through its designated representative who shall be the City’s public official designated as 

Project Administrator.  The Project Administrator shall assume and perform the following 

duties: 

a. Cause the making of all contracts, duly authorized and approved, for 

retaining consulting engineers to design and estimate the necessary costs and 

expenses of the Project Costs. 

b. Submit a copy of the plans and specifications for the Project to the Public 

Works Director for review prior to any advertisement for construction 

bidding, together with a statement of estimated Project Costs which reflects 

the Board's financial obligation under the terms of this Agreement.  The 

Public Works Director or his designee shall review the plans and 

specifications for the Project and may, but shall not be obligated to, suggest 

changes or revisions to the plans and specifications. 

c. If required by applicable state or federal statutes, solicit bids for the 

construction of the Project by publication in the official newspaper of the 

City of Edgerton.  If the Project is located in more than one city, then the 

Project Administrator shall be responsible for determining proper 

publication.  In the solicitation of bids, the appropriate combination of best 

bids shall be determined by the Project Administrator. 

d. Cause the making of all contracts and appropriate change orders, duly 

authorized and approved, for the construction of the Project. 

e. Submit to the Public Works Director a statement of actual costs and 

expenses, in the form of a payment request, with attached copies of all 

invoices and supporting materials, on or before the tenth day of each month 

following the month in which costs and expenses have been paid.  The 

Public Works Director shall review the statement or payment request to 



5 

determine whether the statement or payment request is properly submitted 

and documented and, upon concurrence with the Finance Director of 

Johnson County, Kansas (“Finance Director”), cause payment to be made to 

the Project Administrator of the Board's portion of the Project Costs within 

thirty (30) days after receipt of such statement or payment request.  In the 

event federal or state agencies require, as a condition to state or federal 

participation in the Project, that the Board make payment prior to 

construction or at times other than set forth in this subsection, the Public 

Works Director and Finance Director may authorize such payment. 

f. Except when doing so would violate a state or federal rule or regulation, 

cause a sign to be erected in the immediate vicinity of the Project upon 

commencement of construction identifying the Project as part of the CARS 

Program.  The form and location of the sign shall be subject to the review 

and approval of the Public Works Director. 

 

 Upon completion of the construction of the Project, the Project Administrator shall submit to 

each of the parties a final accounting of all costs and expenses incurred in the Project for the 

purpose of apportioning the same among the parties as provided in this Agreement.  It is 

expressly understood and agreed that in no event shall the final accounting obligate the 

parties for a greater proportion of financial participation than that set out in Paragraph 2.c. of 

this Agreement.  The final accounting of Project Costs shall be submitted by the Project 

Administrator no later than sixty (60) days following the completion of the Project 

construction. 

 

 It is further understood and agreed by the City that, to the extent permitted by law and 

subject to the provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act, including but not limited to the 

exceptions and liability limits, it shall indemnify and hold the Board harmless for and from 

any costs, expenses, liabilities or obligations which result from negligent acts or omissions 

of the City or their respective employees, relating to or in connection with the administration 

or construction of the Project. 

 



6 

 In addition, the City shall, and hereby agree to, insert as a special provision of its contract 

with the general contractor ("Project Contractor") chosen to undertake the Project 

construction as contemplated by this Agreement the following paragraphs: 

 

 The Project Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save the Board of 

County Commissioners of Johnson County, Kansas and the City harmless 

from and against all liability for damages, costs, and expenses arising out of 

any claim, suit, action or otherwise for injuries and/or damages sustained to 

persons or property by reason of the negligence or other actionable fault of 

the Project Contractor, his or her sub-contractors, agents or employees in the 

performance of this contract. 

 

 The Board of County Commissioners of Johnson County, Kansas shall be 

named as an additional insured on all policies of insurance issued to the 

Project Contractor and required by the terms of his/her agreement with the 

City. 

 

5. Acquisition of Real Property for the Project 

a. The Board shall not pay any costs for acquisition of real property in 

connection with the Project. 

b. Each City shall be responsible for the acquisition of any real property, 

together with improvements thereon, located within such City's corporate 

boundaries, which is required in connection with the Project; such real 

property acquisition may occur by gift, purchase, or by condemnation as 

authorized and provided by the Eminent Domain Procedure Act, K.S.A. 26-

201 et seq. and K.S.A. 26-501 et seq., and any such acquisition shall comply 

with all federal and state law requirements. 

 

6. Duration and Termination of Agreement 

a. The parties agree that this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect 

until the completion of the Project, unless otherwise terminated as provided 

for in Paragraph 6.b. hereinbelow.  The Project shall be deemed completed 



7 

and this Agreement shall be deemed terminated upon written certification to 

each of the parties by the Project Administrator that the Project has been 

accepted as constructed.  The Project Administrator shall provide a copy of 

the Project Administrator’s certification to both the Public Works Director 

and the Finance Director within thirty (30) days of the Project 

Administrator's determination that the Project is complete.  

b. It is understood and agreed that the Public Works Director shall review the 

status of the Project annually on the first day of March following the 

execution of this Agreement to determine whether satisfactory progress is 

being made on the Project.  In the event that the Public Works Director 

determines that satisfactory progress is not being made on the Project due to 

the City’s breach of this Agreement by not meeting the agreed upon project 

deadlines or otherwise not complying with the terms of this Agreement, the 

Public Works Director is authorized to notify the City that has breached the 

Agreement that it shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of such notification 

to take steps to cure the breach (the “Cure Period”).  It is further understood 

and agreed that the Board shall have the option and right to revoke funding 

approval for the Project and terminate this Agreement should the Board find, 

based upon the determination of the Public Works Director, that satisfactory 

progress is not being made on the Project and that the City has not taken 

sufficient steps to cure the breach during the Cure Period.  Should the Board 

exercise its option as provided herein, it shall send written notice of the same 

to the City and the Board shall have no further liability or obligation under 

this Agreement. 

 

7. Placing Agreement in Force.  The attorney for the City shall cause sufficient copies of this 

Agreement to be executed to provide each party hereto with a duly executed copy of this 

Agreement for its official records. 



8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above and foregoing Agreement has been executed by each 

of the parties hereto and made effective on the day and year first above written. 

 

Board of County Commissioners of 

Johnson County, Kansas 

 

 

Ed Eilert, Chairman 

 

Attest: 

 

Linda W. Barnes 

Clerk of the Board 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

Robert A. Ford 

Assistant County Counselor 
 

 City of Edgerton, Kansas 

 

 

Donald Roberts, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

City Attorney 

 

 





 

 

CARS Form A 
2015--2019 Project Application for the  

County Assistance Road System (CARS) Program  
 

Submit one form for each project.  Make copies of this form as needed.  Complete & Return by March 12, 2014 

Submitting City:     Number 1 Priority  (Y/N)   

Project Location:    

Joint Project With:      Administrating City:    

Contact Name & Title:   County Commission District(s) #:   

Estimated Project Schedule:  Start Date (mo/yr):      Completion Date (mo/yr):    

Current Average Daily Traffic (ADT):     Accident History (Prior 3 Years):   

Project Type: Capacity Major Maintenance Bridge Replacement Bridge Rehabilitation    

 Route Enhancement   System Management 

Current Level of Service (LOS) [System Management Projects Only]:    

Sufficiency Rating (Bridge Projects):   Pavement Condition: Good □  Fair □ Poor □ 
 

 
Detailed Description of Existing Facility: 
 
 
 
Detailed Description of Project Scope: 
 
 
 
 

Project Cost Information * 
1. Design Cost:   
2. Right-of-way acquisition cost:   
3. Utility relocation Cost:   
4. Construction cost:   
5. Construction engineering cost:   
 Total project cost:  
   
Calculation of CARS Eligible costs: 
A. Sum item # 4 & 5 above  (+)  
B. Federal Aid Participation  (-)  
C. State Aid Participation (-)  
D. Other Non-local Participation (-)  
 Subtotal (CARS eligible costs)   
 CARS Funding request  
 (Request cannot exceed 50% of the CARS eligible costs) 

 Funding participation by other cities:  
City Name:  Funding:  
City Name:  Funding:  

 
*Program policies require that a licensed professional engineer prepare and seal construction cost estimates for upcoming fiscal year projects (i.e., 
2014 Program Projects).  A copy of the sealed estimates must be furnished for all 2014 CARS Program requests. 





J:\Public\Budget Information\2015 Budget\Special Highway\Special Hwy Fund 2015.xlsx

City of Edgerton
Special Highway Fund
2015 Budget

2014 Estimate 2015 Proposed

Beginning Balance 1/1 168,128$         131,992$           

Revenues 43,340$           43,690$             

Expenditures (79,476)$          (100,453)$          

Revenues Over (Under Expenditures) (36,136)$          (56,763)$            

Ending Balance, 12/31 Projected 131,992$         75,229$             

Expenditure Detail:

2014 Chip & Seal 51,859$           
Edgewood Cut Outs 27,617$           
2015 Chip Seal 28,033$             
CARS Project w/Johnson County
(Edgewood/207th) 42,420$             
Prepwork at 7th/6th/Heather Knoll) 30,000$             

79,476$           100,453$           



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal For Waverly Road Project 
 
Department:  Public Works 
  
Background/Description of Item: In February 2015, the Edgerton City Council approved Resolution 
No. 02-12-15A approving an Agreement with the Secretary of the Kansas Department of Transportation 
(KDOT) and BNSF Railway Company for a grant for construction of Waverly Road adjacent to Logistics 
Park Kansas City. Additionally, the Edgerton City Council approved a Design-Build Agreement with 
Clarkson Construction Company to complete that project. The project includes construction of 
approximately three miles of concrete roadway and a grade separation at the BNSF Railway Intermodal 
tracks leaving the Logistics Park Kansas City.  
 
The Design-Build Agreement states the Contractor shall design the project to approximately 30% of the 
Project, which will enable the Contractor to determine a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for 
construction of the project and a Project Progress Schedule. The GMP is to include a Cost of the Work 
and must be agreed upon by both the City and the Contractor. The City must also agree to the Project 
Progress Schedule. Clarkson has submitted its Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal for the City Council 
to consider.  
 
To prepare this GMP, the Design-Build team has completed design of the project to thirty percent 
(30%); prepared Project Design Criteria that have been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer and 
staff; and finalized the matrix of permits required for construction of the project.  
 
Please find enclosed the following items submitted by Clarkson for consideration by City Council:  
• Cover Letter: This summarizes the items included in the GMP proposal. 
• Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP): The GMP totals $28,724,625.13. A detailed item breakdown 

of this price proposal is included. This does not include the contract for preliminary work 
($675,374.87) to develop the GMP or funding allocated for city administrative expenses ($600,000). 

• Scope of the Work: This includes description of the scope of work in areas such as remaining 
design (both bridge and roadway), utility coordination, permitting, construction, project 
management, etc. 

• Project Schedule: The project schedule states that project will be open to traffic before December 
31, 2015 with a few exceptions to include permanent seeding, permanent pavement markings, 
polymer overlay and final cleanup/punch list. These exceptions are needed due to anticipated 
weather requirements for placement. All work will be completed by June 1, 2016.  

 
Staff has provided the GMP proposal to KDOT for review/comment as required by the Agreement with 
KDOT for the grant. Additionally the proposal has been reviewed by staff and City Engineer. Staff will 
present a summary of the project during April 9, 2015 city council meeting. Additionally, City Engineer 
and Design-Build team will be present for questions.   
 
Enclosures: Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Proposal 
  Design-Build Agreement with Clarkson Construction Company 
  Project Maps from City Council Work Session (under separate cover) 
 



Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   
 
Recommendation:  Approve Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal in the amount of $28,724,625.13, 
Scope of Work and Project Schedule and authorize the Mayor to execute Exhibit C.  
 
Funding Source: Kansas Department of Transportation Grant 
 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: April 6, 2014 



Road and Bridge Infrastructure Improvements on Waverly Road
 US 56 Highway to 199th Street, Edgerton, KS

Price Proposal

APRIL 2015







Waverly Road Project

City of Edgerton, KS

Biditem Description Quantity Units Unit Price Totals

10 DESIGN 1.000 LS 2,339,141.37 $2,339,141.37

20 MOBILIZATION & PROJECT MANAGEMENT 1.000 LS 3,028,451.67 $3,028,451.67

30 REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS 1.000 LS 72,843.48 $72,843.48

40 KANSAS GAS RELOCATION 1.000 LS 85,000.00 $85,000.00

50 GARDNER WATER CASING & RELOCATION 1.000 LS 50,000.00 $50,000.00

60 GARDNER ELEC RELOCATION TO LIFT STA 1.000 LS 93,600.00 $93,600.00

70 WATER DIST #7 CASING & RELOCATION 1.000 LS 140,000.00 $140,000.00

80 EROSION CONTROL 1.000 LS 196,250.00 $196,250.00

90 CLEARING & GRUBBING 1.000 LS 46,503.30 $46,503.30

100 GRADING 1.000 LS 2,457,072.03 $2,457,072.03

110 FLOWABLE FILL 900.000 CY 190.03 $171,027.00

120 18" RCP PIPE 6,573.000 LF 55.15 $362,500.95

130 24" RCP PIPE CL III 3,368.000 LF 67.21 $226,363.28

140 30" RCP PIPE CL III 223.000 LF 87.70 $19,557.10

150 36" RCP PIPE CL III 598.000 LF 107.74 $64,428.52

160 48" RCP PIPE CL III 977.000 LF 165.99 $162,172.23

170 54" RCP PIPE CL III 442.000 LF 211.09 $93,301.78

180 38" x 48" RCP PIPE CL III 101.000 LF 222.11 $22,433.11

190 60" x 38" RCP PIPE CL III 85.000 LF 271.87 $23,108.95

200 18" RCP FES 8.000 EA 1,188.82 $9,510.56

210 24" RCP FES 3.000 EA 1,376.02 $4,128.06

220 36" RCP FES 6.000 EA 2,111.60 $12,669.60

230 54" RCP FES 1.000 EA 4,450.52 $4,450.52

240 38" x 48" RCP FES 2.000 EA 3,246.97 $6,493.94

250 60" x 38" RCP FES 2.000 EA 4,216.52 $8,433.04

260 INLETS 104.000 EA 4,357.48 $453,177.92

270 MANHOLES 2.000 EA 5,515.22 $11,030.44

280 RCB 8x7 80.000 LF 1,530.30 $122,424.00

290 RCB 2‐6x5 90.000 LF 1,699.80 $152,982.00

300 RCB 3‐16x8 148.000 LF 5,064.48 $749,543.04

310 HANDRAIL ON RCB 310.000 LF 100.51 $31,158.10

320 SLOPE PROTECTION (RIP RAP) 3,924.000 CY 68.85 $270,167.40

330 LIME TREATED SUBGRADE (6") 73,380.000 SY 7.18 $526,868.40

340 LIME 908.000 TON 195.94 $177,913.52

350 CEMENT TREATED BASE (4") 73,380.000 SY 13.71 $1,006,039.80

360 AGGREGATE SURFACING (6") 3,500.000 SY 9.45 $33,075.00

370 CONCRETE PAVEMENT (12") 70,860.000 SY 67.89 $4,810,685.40

380 CONCRETE SAFETY BARRIER SPECIAL (42") 600.000 LF 269.58 $161,748.00

390 TYPE 2 BARRIER (42") 900.000 LF 111.90 $100,710.00

400 MOMENT SLAB 670.000 SY 65.92 $44,166.40

410 CONCRETE MASONRY COATING 325.000 SY 10.76 $3,497.00

420 SIMULATED STONE MASONRY STAIN 250.000 SY 71.02 $17,755.00

430 CONCRETE DRIVEWAYS 500.000 SY 58.50 $29,250.00

440 APWA CURB & GUTTER 30,500.000 LF 19.60 $597,800.00

450 SIDEWALK 14,914.000 SY 35.39 $527,806.46

460 ADA SIDEWALK RAMPS 29.000 EA 1,170.00 $33,930.00

470 TRAFFIC SIGNAL CONDUIT 1.000 LS 29,250.00 $29,250.00



Biditem Description Quantity Units Unit Price Totals

480 BRIDGE LIGHTING 1.000 LS 222,300.00 $222,300.00

490 PAVEMENT MARKING 1.000 LS 146,250.00 $146,250.00

500 SIGNS 1.000 LS 29,250.00 $29,250.00

510 FENCE 250.000 LF 70.20 $17,550.00

520 MAINTAIN ACCESS 1.000 LS 206,850.02 $206,850.02

530 SEEDING & MULCHING 1.000 LS 38,610.00 $38,610.00

540 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1.000 LS 29,250.00 $29,250.00

550 MSE WALLS 32,000.000 SF 70.20 $2,246,400.00

560 GROUND IMPROVEMENTS 7,316.000 CY 19.45 $142,296.20

570 2' CONCRETE GUTTER 400.000 LF 50.43 $20,172.00

580 CLASS III EXCAVATION 462.000 CY 127.63 $58,965.06

590 CONCRETE (GRADE 4.0) (AE) 919.600 CY 890.10 $818,535.96

600 CONCRETE (GRADE 4.0) (AE) (SA) 1,865.800 CY 710.02 $1,324,755.32

610 REINFORCING STEEL (GRADE 60) 230,000.000 LBS 1.22 $280,600.00

620 REINFORCING STEEL (GRADE 60) (EPOXY COATED) 450,000.000 LBS 1.13 $508,500.00

630 DRILLED SHAFT AND ROCK SOCKETS 286.000 LF 1,108.99 $317,171.14

640 SONIC TEST (DRILLED SHAFT) (SET PRICE) 1.000 EA 11,407.50 $11,407.50

650 PILES (STEEL) (HP 14X89) 639.000 LF 142.98 $91,364.22

660 PRESTRESSED CONCRETE BEAM NU 70 4,296.000 LF 372.23 $1,599,100.08

670 MULTI‐LAYER POLYMER CONCRETE OVERLAY 3,920.000 SY 46.80 $183,456.00

680 EXPANSION JOINT (STRIP SEAL) 54.500 LF 453.90 $24,737.55

690 BRIDGE DRAINAGE SYSTEM 1.000 LS 10,050.56 $10,050.56

700 BRIDGE BACKWALL PROTECTION SYSTEM 206.000 SY 30.99 $6,383.94

710 AGGREGATE DRAIN SYSTEM 203.000 CY 212.57 $43,151.71

720 NEOPRENE BEARING PADS 72.000 EA 1,273.59 $91,698.48

730 BRIDGE FENCE 1,446.000 LF 128.70 $186,100.20

740 BRIDGE APPROACH SLAB 303.000 SY 263.25 $79,764.75

750 CONCRETE MASONRY COATING 573.000 SY 10.76 $6,165.48

760 SIMULATED STONE MASONRY STAIN 573.000 SY 71.02 $40,694.46

4000 187TH STREET EXTENSION 1.000 LS 352,676.13 $352,676.13

GRAND TOTAL $28,724,625.13



 
  
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

DESIGN 
 

I. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES AND PROJECT LIMITS 
 
The scope of work covered by this proposal includes the final design of the roadway grading, paving, 
drainage and structural features required to complete improvements as part of the Waverly Road Project 
within the limits indicated below: 

1) 197th Street from Sta. 65+50 to Sta. 89+42.94 (cul-de-sac at Sta. 65+50)  
2) Waverly Road from Sta. 89+42.94 to Sta. 202+02.13 
3) 185th Street from Sta. 0+00 to Sta. 39+42.89 
4) Rail served from Sta. 9+50 to Sta. 21+10 (partial paving only to Conservation Corridor) 
5) 191st Street & Intermodal Parkway tie-in work and miscellaneous entrances. This includes leg of 

the 191st Street/Waverly Road intersection north to a point near the BNSF Transcontinental Tracks 
in Edgerton, Kansas. 

 
In general, the project is divided into two segments for delivery.  The South Segment is considered all work 
lying completely south of the intersection between Waverly Road and 191st Street.  The North Segment is 
considered all work north of this intersection, including the intersection itself. 
 
The scope of services includes developing the following deliverables for the Contractor: 

1) Project Permitting 
2) Right-of-Way plans (Right-of-Way Acquisition by Others) 
3) Early grading plans 

a. South Segment  
b. North Segment 

4) Paving plans 
a. South Segment 
b. North Segment 

5) Crossroad drainage plans 
a. South Segment 
b. North Segment 

6) Storm sewer plans 
a. South Segment 
b. North Segment 

7) Reinforced Box Culvert Plans (scope is for KDOT Standard Plans/RCB’s) 
a. RCB 1 
b. RCB 2 
c. RCB 3 

8) Bridge plans for Waverly Road over BNSF Intermodal Tracks (Existing & Future) 
9) Signing & Striping plans 

a. South Segment 
b. North Segment 

10) Erosion Control plans 
a. South Segment 
b. North Segment 

 
The following additional project management, project coordination and construction phase services are also 
included in this scope of services: 

1) Utility coordination (utility relocation design By Others) 
2) Railroad coordination (railroad agreement By Others) 
3) Construction services during construction 

a. Response to Requests for Information (RFI) 
b. Review and process Shop Drawings 

  



 
  
 

c. Preparation of as-built drawings from redlined set of drawings, RFI & shop drawings.  
Managing, assembling and tracking redline drawings, RFI’s and shop drawings to be 
incorporated into as-built drawings shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

4) Project management 
5) Project meetings 

 
Project specific design criteria previously approved by the City will be the basis of design.  This approved 
design criteria will take precedent over other codes and criteria where in conflict. 
     

II. PROPOSED ROADWAY ENGINEERING SERVICES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
A. ROADWAY 

 
A1. EARLY GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLANS 

Early Grading and Drainage (G&D) Plans will be prepared based on the preliminary plans 
(Proposal Plans).  The design will be completed in accordance with the project specific design 
criteria. MSE Walls will be constructed at both the north and south abutments of the new 
bridge over the BNSF Intermodal Lead Tracks. G&D plans will accommodate proposed 3-
lane roadway, intersections, sidewalk, private entrances, storm drainage systems, roadway 
culverts, utility easements, drainage ditches, bridge embankment, retaining walls, lighting 
equipment (at the proposed bridge only), and conduits for the future signals as per the 
preliminary plans.  Light level analysis for bridge lighting and construction sequencing 
concepts will be refined, and lighting layout sheets and traffic control plans will be developed 
and be included in the Early G&D Plans.   

 
G&D Plan Submittal 
The following sheets will be developed for the Early G&D Plan submittal: 

• Title Sheet 
• Typical Section Sheets  
• Plan Sheets  
• Profile Sheets 
• Entrance Profile Sheets 
• MSE Wall Sheets  
• Intersection Layout Sheets  
• Permanent Erosion Control Sheets  
• Temporary Erosion Control Sheets  
• Cross Section Sheets  
• Signal/Utility Conduit Layout 
• Lighting Layout  
• Construction Sequencing Sheets  
• Traffic Control Sheets  
• Traffic Control Cross Sections  
• G&D Plan Standard Drawings 
 

Submittals will be made for the Early G&D plans at 60% and at Issued for Construction phase 
(IFC).   

 
A2. PAVING PLANS 

 
Paving plans will be developed from the Early G&D Plans.  The design will be completed in 
accordance with the project specific design criteria.  ADA compatible sidewalk ramps will be 
included at pedestrian crossings with the pertinent pavement markings at crosswalks.  
Decorative fencing will be installed atop concrete barriers on the West side of Waverly Road 
between Intermodal Parkway and Rail Served Road.  Decorative lighting will be installed on 
the bridge only.  Handrails will be included atop the headwalls of Box Culverts adjacent to 
sidewalk facilities.  

  



 
  
 

 
Paving Plan Submittal 
The following sheets will be developed for the Paving Plan submittal: 

• Title Sheet 
• Typical Section Sheets  
• Jointing Sheets  
• Pavement Marking Sheets  
• Signing Sheets 
• Fencing Sheets  
• Seeding Sheets 
• Supplemental Intersection Detail Sheets  
• Paving Plans Standard Drawings 

 
Submittals will be made for the Paving Plans at 60% and at IFC.   

 
B. UTILITY COORDINATION 

 
HDR will setup utility coordination meetings to facilitate the utility relocation process.  
Negotiation of utility agreements and necessary utility easements will be the responsibilities of the 
City of Edgerton (City). 
 
Design of the utility relocations will be the responsibility of the respective utilities. RIGHT-OF-
WAY PLANS. 
 
Right-of-Way (ROW) plans will be prepared based on the Proposal Plans.  Plans will show 
existing and proposed ROW, existing and proposed utility easements, temporary easements, 
ownership information, and section lines. 
  
It is assumed that the proposed ROW will be 100’ wide and centered on the section line along 
Waverly Road and 80’ wide and centered along 185th Street Realignment.  10’ shared utility 
easements will be required adjacent to both sides of the ROW.  Permanent easements for private 
utilities and drainage will also be included as the negotiations are completed with the utilities and 
landowners.  Temporary easements will be delineated to encompass the limits of construction and 
expire one year after project completion. 
 
ROW Exhibits for use with the negotiation and acquisition of ROW and easements will be 
developed by others.  Negotiation of ROW and easements will be handled by the City. 

 
Right-of-Way Plan Submittal 
The following plan set will be developed for the Right-of-Way Plan submittal: 

• Title Sheet 
• ROW Plan Sheet  

 
Submittals will be made for the ROW plans at 60% and at IFC.   

 
C. LIST OF SUBMITTALS AND DELIVERABLES – NORTH AND SOUTH SEGMENTS 

 
• 100% Right-of-Way Plans 
• Final Right-of-Way Plans 
• 60% Grading and Drainage Plans 
• IFC Grading and Drainage Plans 
• 60% Paving Plans 
• IFC Paving Plans 

 
III. PROPOSED DRAINAGE ENGINEERING SERVICES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 

  



 
  
 

This scope of work defines the proposed engineering services to be provided by HDR Engineering, 
Inc. (HDR) for the Drainage Discipline.  The scope of services includes drainage plans for the scope of 
work defined in Section I – General Scope of Services and Project Limits. 
 
D. DRAINAGE PLANS AND DESIGN 

 
  Final drainage plans will be prepared based on the Proposal Plans.  Special provisions and  
  supplemental specifications that pertain to the drainage design will be updated during the final  
  design phase. 
 
 The drainage design within the project limits includes the following items: 

1) Revise curb inlets, manholes and trunk line system for final design 
2) Update spread widths, inlet captures and bypass (10 year, 25 year, 100 years) 
3) Final/detail sizing of grate inlets adjacent to MSE Walls 
4) Prepare pipe profiles (include HGL) 
5) Evaluate 1% storm curb depths and overflow paths 
6) Energy dissipation design at storm sewer outfalls 
7) Submit no-rise calculations and floodplain development permits 
8) Obtain final LOMR Model (north of 183rd Street) 
9) Verify 100 year overtopping depths (7” or less) at all culverts 
10) Verify ditch sizing (left and right) 
11) Prepare BNSF RR culvert sizing memo 
12) Prepare culvert profiles (2 culverts) 
13) Prepare standard RCB Sheets & coordinate with Structures Discipline 
14) Prepare project hydraulic memo/report  

 
E. STORM SEWER PLANS 

 
Storm sewer plans will be developed from the G&D Plans.  The design will be completed in 
accordance with the project specific design criteria.  The inlet spacing will be developed based on 
not exceeding the spread width requirements during a 10 year design.  The ponding depth on a 25 
year storm will be calculated to verify flow will not cross the crown.  The hydraulic grade line of 
storm sewers will be calculated and held to no higher than top of pipe during the 10 year storm.  
The hydraulic grade line will also be calculated for the 25 year and 100 year storms to assist with 
the ponding depth calculations.  The hydraulic grade line for storms larger than the 10 year return 
interval may surcharge the pipe. 
 
Storm Sewer Plan Submittal 
The following sheets will be developed for the Paving Plan submittal: 

• Title Sheet 
• Plan and Profile Sheets  
• Culvert Penetration Details  
• Custom Grate Inlet Details (next to MSE wall) 
• Standard Curb Inlet and Junction Box Details  
• Pipe Bedding and Standard Storm Sewer Details  

 
Submittals will be made for the Storm Sewer Plans at 60% and at IFC.  Energy dissipation is 
based on out-letting the storm pipes into the side of a box culvert (3 penetrations).  One rock rip 
rap apron/flume will be sized near the railroad service drive on the north side of the viaduct. 
 

F. CULVERT PLANS 
 
Culvert (cross pipe) plans will be developed from the G&D Plans.  The design will be completed 
in accordance with the project specific design criteria.  Standard KDOT boxes, wing walls and 
pipe flared end sections will be used.  Structural sheets detailing the wall thickness, rebar and 
layout will supplied in MicroStation format from KDOT.  The scour protection is based on 

  



 
  
 

installation of a rock rip rap apron at the outlet of each culvert.  The rock rip rap apron stone size 
shall be sized based on KDOT criteria. 
 
The conceptual design of the culvert under the viaduct for a future BNSF rail spur will be 
developed.  The conceptual design will consist of one plan and profile sheet.  The sizing of this 
culvert will be documented in a standalone BNSF sizing memo.  The culvert size will be based on 
meeting BNSF hydraulic capacity standards for the 100 year and 50 year return interval.  The 
hydrology will be based on future detained upstream flows following APWA criteria. 
 
Culvert Plan Submittal 
The following sheets will be developed for the Paving Plan submittal: 

• Culvert Plan and Profile  
• Structural Sheets  
• Outlet Protection and Erosion Control  
• Culvert Standard Drawings 

 
Submittals will be made for the Culvert Plans at 60% and at IFC.   

 
IV. PROPOSED BRIDGE ENGINEERING SERVICES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 
The scope of work covered by this proposal includes the final design of the new Waverly Road Bridge 
carrying Waverly Road over the BNSF Intermodal Lead Tracks.  This scope also includes coordination 
with the Drainage and Roadway Disciplines to design and detail RCB and culverts in three locations.  
This scope also includes coordination with the Roadway Discipline for two MSE wall layouts at both 
abutments of the overpass bridge.  Coordination and consultation with the BNSF for the new overpass 
bridge is also included.  
 
G. BRIDGE PLANS 

 
Final bridge plans will be prepared based on the Proposal Plans.  Special provisions and 
supplemental specifications that pertain to the bridge design will be updated during the final 
design phase of the project.     
 

Waverly Road Bridge 
Proposed Work:  New structure is a 6 span prestressed girder bridge (Spans 132.6-
114.3-136-107.5-110-90).  The structure will accommodate non-phased construction.  
Abutments will be integral and founded on steel piles behind MSE walls. Abutments will 
use U-shaped wings. The piers (except Pier 1) will be round column bents with crash 
walls or grade beams founded on drilled shafts. Pier 1 will be an inverted T Straddle bent 
founded with large diameter columns founded on drilled shafts. 

 
Bridge Plans 
The following plan sheets will be developed to match the anticipated construction for the bridge: 

• General Notes and Summary of Quantities 
• Contour Map 
• Construction Layout Sheet 
• Engineering Geology 
• Abutment Details 
• Pier Details 
• Bearing Device Details 
• Beam Layout 
• Beam Details  
• Diaphragm Details 
• Slab Plan and Details 
• Camber and Pavement Elevations 
• Superstructure Details (Plan) 

  



 
  
 

• Superstructure Details (Sections) 
• Expansion Joint Details 
• Barrier Curb Details 
• Conduit Details 
• Fencing Details 
• Lighting Details 
• Bill of Reinforcing Steel and Bending Diagrams 
• Bridge Standards  

 
Bridge rating for the bridge will be done per the latest guidelines in the KDOT Bridge Design Manual. 
Rating will include superstructure limits only. 

 
Deliverables 
HDR will provide full size PDF for review at 60% and IFC.  
 
Bridge rating report (xml and BWS report) will be provided for the bridge at IFC. 
 
Revisions to Office Check Plans 
HDR will make revisions to the plans per the 60% review.   
 

H. RR COORDINATION AND MEETINGS 
 
Structures will coordinate with the BNSF RR, Contractor and the City of Edgerton to develop the 
RR Crossing Agreement for the new Waverly Road Bridge over the Lead Tracks. This scope 
includes meetings with the railroad as well as developing the plans for railroad submittals. Scope 
includes assistance in developing the crossing agreement to be submitted to the BNSF RR.  

 
I. DRAINAGE DESIGN, DETAILS AND DRAINAGE COORDINATION 

 
Structures will coordinate with the Drainage design and help develop designs and details for the 
three RCB/culverts on the Waverly Road project.   

 
J. MSE WALL LAYOUTS AND ROADWAY COORDINATION 

 
Structures will coordinate with the Roadway design and help with the development of the MSE 
Wall plans and details on the Waverly Road project. Structures will help Roadway develop details 
for the standard MSE details, MSE drainage and other features for the MSE walls. 
 
Structures will coordinate with the Roadway design and help with the development of the 
approach slabs for the bridge.  Standard KDOT approach slab details will be developed and 
modified as required for the approach slabs on each end of the Waverly Road Bridge over the lead 
tracks. 
 

V. PROPOSED ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING SERVICES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
This scope of work defines the proposed engineering services to be provided by HDR Engineering, 
Inc. (HDR) for the Environmental Permitting Discipline.  The scope of work covered by this proposal 
includes the continuation of preliminary design phase permitting for construction of the road, bridge 
and culvert work for the project. 
 
K. MEETINGS AND COORDINATION 

 
Participate in project coordination meetings and ongoing coordination support.  One 
environmental personnel to attend each meeting for approximately 3-month duration until final 
design is complete. 

  



 
  
 

L. 404/401 PERMIT APPLICATION PREPARATION AND SUBMITTAL 
 
Request Nationwide Permit #14 under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.  Complete the Section 
404 Permit Application USACE ENG Form 4345 or PCN letter or full individual permit 
application submittal.  Submit the 404 permit application to the USACE.   

Prepare cover letter and supporting information to USACE for review.  Permitting information 
potentially includes, but not limited to: design plans provided, construction methods, avoidance 
and minimization, and impacts.     

USACE 404 permit request letter and Permit Application with attachments.     

NWP #14 USACE 404 permit can be obtained if project impacts (loss of waters of the U.S.) are at 
or under 0.5 acre.  Wetland and stream impacts greater than 0.5 acre will require an Individual 
Permit.  One copy of the Section 404/401 Permit Application will be provided to City. Mitigation 
is not anticipated.   

A Nationwide Permit can typically be obtained within approximately 60 day of submittal. 

Design components (plans, profiles, cross sections, construction limits widths, etc.) provided 
internally by HDR design engineers to determine environmental impacts. 

M. KS DEPT. OF AGRICULTURE – DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES – STREAM 
OBSTRUCTION AND FLOODPLAIN FILL PERMITS 
 
Prepare Stream Obstruction and Floodplain Fill Permits from KDA- DWR for a new culvert and 
related embankment fill.  Application also covers occasional coordination such as telephone calls, 
emails, and standard mail.   

N. AGENCY COORDINATION – CORPS, KDA-DWR, KDHE, CITY OF EDGERTON AND 
JOCO STORMWATER 
 
Coordinate with agencies as necessary.  Record coordination via phone notes, emails, memo of 
findings of coordination.   

CITY OF EDGERTON AND JOHNSON COUNTY SWPPP’S AND LAND 
DISTURBANCE APPLICATIONS. 

Prepare City and County Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) and Land Disturbance 
Permit applications and related submittals for stormwater runoff from construction activities 
specific to construction of the project in conformance with City and County Land Disturbance 
Permit Requirements for construction activities. Prepare Land Disturbance applications and 
SWPPP’s and submit.  Maintenance of the SWPPP’s during construction, including SWPPP and 
FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT. 

Coordinate and prepare complete floodplain permit applications to be submitted to Johnson 
County and/or City floodplain administrators based on county regulations for work within Zone A 
100-year floodplains (base elevations and flood hazards factors undetermined).  No-rise 
certification is assumed by a licensed professional Kansas engineer. 

  



 
  
 

O. FAA FORM 7460-1 NOTICE TO PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OR ALTERATION 
FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 
Prepare and submit FAA Form 7460-1 clearances for bridge and crane lighting obstructions in 
navigable airspace. 

VI. DESIGN CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES  
 
P. BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 
The scope of services is for design services during construction including: project administration, 
bi-weekly meetings, answering construction requests for information, shop drawing reviews, and 
developing as-built drawings for the structures on the project (bridge, RCB, etc.).  
 

Q. ROADWAY & DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 

Design services during construction include Project administration that includes: bi-weekly 
meetings, answering construction requests for information, shop drawing reviews and developing 
as-built drawings for the Roadway and Drainage components of the project.  
 

VII. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

R. DESIGN PHASE MEETINGS 
 

Bi-weekly project design meetings will be conducted until the design phase of the project is 
completed.  Meetings will be documented with a list of attendees, date/time/location of the 
meeting, major items discussed and decisions reached.  Meeting minutes will be prepared and 
stored in the project files on ProjectWise.  

 
S. ADMINISTRATION 
 

Project administration will include project scheduling and directing overall design of the project 
including the work product of subconsultants. 
 
Documenting and recording quality control reviews and confirming design compliance with 
contract requirements. 

 
VIII. SUBMITTALS 

 
T. BRIDGE SUBMITTALS AND DELIVERABLES 

 
• 60% Bridge Plans 
• 60% RCB Plans 
• IFC Bridge Plans 
• IFC RCB Plans 
• CAD Conformed MicroStation DGN Files Bridge rating report (xml and BWS report) at 

IFC 
 

U. ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE SUBMITTALS AND DELIVERABLES 
 

• 60% Right-of-Way Plans 
• Final Right-of-Way Plans 
• 60% Grading and Drainage Plans 
• IFC Grading and Drainage Plans 
• 60% Paving Plans 
• IFC Paving Plans 

  



 
  
 

• All submittals include submittals for the North Segment and South Segment 
 

IX. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 
 

The design phase of the project is scheduled to be completed by July 31, 2015.  The goal of the project 
is to achieve substantial completion of construction by December 31, 2015.   

    
       CONSTRUCTION 

 
Contractor shall provide all necessary labor, equipment, material and project administration to 
oversee the design and to perform construction of the work in accordance with the design plans 
and the project schedule. Contractor shall provide a construction office on, or near, the site for use 
by all Project personnel and City representatives but not to include the City’s inspection and 
testing personnel. 
 
Construction will begin work upon plan approval of the Guaranteed Maximum Price by the City.  
Construction will begin before all plans are complete if the Contractor presents satisfactory plans 
for specific portions of the work that are not impacted by regulatory approval, right-of-way 
acquisition, utility relocations, and other design considerations that will affect the remainder of the 
Project.   

 
 PROJECT CLOSEOUT 
 

Contractor will be responsible for monitoring progress of construction through daily observation 
and recordkeeping.  The Contractor shall submit monthly construction pay requests, certifying to 
their accuracy and appropriateness.  Upon completion of all construction, final inspection and 
addressing of punch-list items, the Contractor shall provide all required Project closeout 
documents.   

 

  



ID
Ta
sk
 N
am

e
D
u
ra
ti
o
n

St
ar
t

Fi
n
is
h

1 2
P
h
as
e 
1
 N
o
ti
ce
 T
o
 P
ro
ce
ed

0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 1
/2
2
/1
5

Th
u
 1
/2
2
/1
5

3
C
o
n
ce
p
t 
D
ev
el
o
p
m
en

t 
‐ 
3
0
%
 D
es
ig
n

4
4
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 1
/2
2
/1
5

W
ed

 3
/4
/1
5

4
D
ev
el
o
p
 G
u
ar
an
te
ed

 M
ax
im

u
m
 P
ri
ce

1
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 3
/1
9
/1
5

Th
u
 4
/2
/1
5

5
P
h
as
e 
2
 N
o
ti
ce
 T
o
 P
ro
ce
ed

7
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 4
/3
/1
5

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

6
P
e
rm

it
ti
n
g

4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

7
K
S 
D
ep

t 
O
f 
A
g 
‐ 
D
iv
 O
f 
W
at
er
 R
es
o
u
rc
es

4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

8
U
S 
A
rm

y 
C
o
rp
s 
O
f 
En
gi
n
ee
rs

4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

9
K
S 
D
ep

t 
O
f 
W
ild
lif
e
 &
 P
ar
ks

4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

1
0

K
S 
D
ep

t 
O
f 
H
ea
lt
h
 &
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t
4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

1
1

U
S 
Fi
sh
 &
 W

ild
lif
e

4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

1
2

Th
ir
d
 P
ar
ty
 A
gr
e
e
m
e
n
ts

8
9
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

1
3

B
N
SF
 A
er
ia
l C
ro
ss
in
g 
A
gr
ee
m
en

t
8
9
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

1
4

R
ig
h
t 
O
f 
W
ay
 P
la
n
s

2
3
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Fr
i 5
/1
/1
5

1
5

R
ig
h
t 
O
f 
W
ay
 A
cq
u
is
it
io
n
 ‐
 (
R
/W

 C
le
ar
)

2
2
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 5
/1
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

1
6

U
ti
lit
y 
R
e
lo
ca
ti
o
n

8
9
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

1
7

So
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st
 S
tr
ee
t

4
5
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

1
8

N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st
 S
tr
ee
t

4
4
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

1
9

D
e
si
gn

 P
ac
ka
ge
s

1
1
8
 d
ay
s
Th

u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/3
0
/1
5

2
0

G
eo

te
ch
 R
ep

o
rt
 ‐
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

3
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

2
1

G
eo

te
ch
 R
ep

o
rt
 ‐
 N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

6
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

2
2

G
ra
d
e 
&
 D
ra
in
 ‐
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

3
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

2
3

Fi
n
al
 P
la
n
s 
‐ 
So
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

4
4
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

Th
u
 6
/1
8
/1
5

2
4

G
ra
d
e 
&
 D
ra
in
 ‐
 N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

6
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

2
5

Fi
n
al
 P
la
n
s 
‐ 
N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

5
8
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/3
0
/1
5

2
6

M
O
T 
‐ 
So
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

3
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

2
7

M
O
T 
‐ 
N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

3
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

2
8

Sl
ab
, B

ar
ri
er
s,
 F
en

ci
n
g 
&
 R
ai
lin
g

3
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

2
9

G
ir
d
er
s

3
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 5
/7
/1
5

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

3
0

M
is
c 
St
ru
ct
u
re
s

2
9
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

3
1

O
ve
rp
as
s 
M
SE
 W

al
ls

2
9
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

3
2

B
ri
d
ge
 F
o
u
n
d
at
io
n
s

2
9
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

3
3

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n

2
7
1
 d
ay
s
Th

u
 4
/9
/1
5

Tu
e
 1
2
/2
2
/1
5

3
4

M
o
b
ili
za
ti
o
n

2
3
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 4
/9
/1
5

Fr
i 5
/1
/1
5

3
5

G
ra
d
e 
&
 D
ra
in
 ‐
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

6
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 5
/2
1
/1
5

Sa
t 
7
/1
8
/1
5

3
6

P
av
in
g 
&
 M

is
c 
‐ 
So
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

6
0
 d
ay
s

Sa
t 
7
/1
8
/1
5

Su
n
 9
/1
3
/1
5

3
7

O
p
en

 T
o
 T
ra
ff
ic
 ‐
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

0
 d
ay
s

Su
n
 9
/1
3
/1
5

Su
n
 9
/1
3
/1
5

3
8

G
ra
d
e 
&
 D
ra
in
 ‐
 N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

6
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

Fr
i 8
/2
8
/1
5

3
9

P
av
in
g 
&
 M

is
c 
‐ 
N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

6
0
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 8
/2
8
/1
5

Sa
t 
1
0
/2
4
/1
5

4
0

Fa
b
ri
ca
te
 M

SE
 W

al
l P
an
el
s

4
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 7
/2
/1
5

Su
n
 8
/9
/1
5

4
1

Fa
b
ri
ca
te
 G
ir
d
er
s

6
0
 d
ay
s

Fr
i 6
/5
/1
5

Sa
t 
8
/1
/1
5

4
2

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
 M

SE
 W

al
ls

3
0
 d
ay
s

Su
n
 8
/9
/1
5

Su
n
 9
/6
/1
5

4
3

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
 B
ri
d
ge
 F
o
u
n
d
at
io
n
s

6
0
 d
ay
s

Th
u
 7
/9
/1
5

Th
u
 9
/3
/1
5

4
4

Er
ec
t 
G
ir
d
er
s

2
1
 d
ay
s

Su
n
 8
/2
3
/1
5

Su
n
 9
/1
3
/1
5

4
5

Fo
rm

 &
 P
o
u
r 
D
ec
k

8
4
 d
ay
s

Sa
t 
8
/2
9
/1
5

M
o
n
 1
1
/1
6
/1
5

4
6

Fo
rm

 &
 P
o
u
r 
B
ar
ri
er
s 
&
 In
st
al
l F
en

ci
n
g

1
0
 d
ay
s

M
o
n
 1
1
/1
6
/1
5F
ri
 1
1
/2
7
/1
5

4
7

P
av
em

en
t 
Ti
e‐
In
s 
@
 B
ri
d
ge
 E
n
d
s

3
0
 d
ay
s

M
o
n
 1
1
/1
6
/1
5T
u
e 
1
2
/1
5
/1
5

4
8

Si
te
 C
le
an

 U
p
 &
 D
em

o
b
ili
za
ti
o
n

7
 d
ay
s

Tu
e 
1
2
/1
5
/1
5
Tu
e 
1
2
/2
2
/1
5

4
9

O
p
en

 T
o
 T
ra
ff
ic
 ‐
 N
o
rt
h
 O
f 
1
9
1
st

0
 d
ay
s

Tu
e 
1
2
/2
2
/1
5
Tu
e 
1
2
/2
2
/1
5

1
/2
2

C
o
n
ce
p
t 
D
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
‐ 
3
0
%
 D
e
si
gn

D
e
ve
lo
p
 G
u
ar
an

te
e
d
 M

ax
im

u
m
 P
ri
ce

P
e
rm

it
ti
n
g

Th
ir
d
 P
ar
ty
 A
gr
e
e
m
e
n
ts

U
ti
lit
y 
R
e
lo
ca
ti
o
n

D
e
si
gn

 P
ac
ka
ge
s

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n

9
/1
3

1
2
/2
2

D
ec
em

b
er

Ja
n
u
ar
y

Fe
b
ru
ar
y

M
ar
ch

A
p
ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
gu
st

Se
p
te
m
b
er

O
ct
o
b
er

N
o
ve
m
b
er

D
ec
em

b
er

Ja
n
u
ar
y

Ta
sk

Sp
lit

M
ile
st
o
n
e

Su
m
m
ar
y

P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
m
m
ar
y

Ex
te
rn
al
 T
as
ks

Ex
te
rn
al
 M

ile
st
o
n
e

In
ac
ti
ve
 T
as
k

In
ac
ti
ve
 M

ile
st
o
n
e

In
ac
ti
ve
 S
u
m
m
ar
y

M
an
u
al
 T
as
k

D
u
ra
ti
o
n
‐o
n
ly

M
an
u
al
 S
u
m
m
ar
y 
R
o
llu
p

M
an
u
al
 S
u
m
m
ar
y

St
ar
t‐
o
n
ly

Fi
n
is
h
‐o
n
ly

D
ea
d
lin
e

P
ro
gr
es
s

P
ag
e 
1

P
ro
je
ct
: W

av
er
ly
 D
B
 S
ch
ed

u
le
 ‐
 C
M

D
at
e:
 T
u
e 
3
/3
1
/1
5







































































































CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Council Meeting Date:   April 9, 2015 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing for First Amendment to Master Resolution of Intent 
 Resolution Amending a Master Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   Industrial Revenue Bonds for the Logistics Park-Kansas City 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent (Resolution No. 07-08-10A) for the issuance of up 
to $500,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds for the benefit of The Allen Group-Kansas City, LLC (“TAG”) to construct 
and equip projects to be located within the Logistics Park-Kansas City.  TAG assigned its right to develop the projects to 
Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC (“ELHC”).  The City consented to the assignment of the Master Resolution of 
Intent (Resolution No. 04-25-13A) from TAG to ELHC. 
 
 ELHC has requested that the size of the Logistics Park be increased to add additional land.  ELHC has also 
requested that the authorized amount of industrial revenue bonds that may be issued to finance Logistics Park projects be 
increased to $1,000,000,000.  ELHC has further requested that the amount of annual PILOT payments be set at a fixed 
amount equal to $0.21 a sq. ft. based on the size of the building constructed with the proceeds of each series of industrial 
revenue bonds. 
 
 The City is required to prepare a cost-benefit report and hold a public hearing since additional land is being added 
and the amount of bonds authorized is being increased. 
 
 The City previously held a public hearing on the increase in size and scope of the Logistics Park on December 12, 
2013.  At that time, no action was taken.  The City is now prepared to again hold a public hearing on increasing the size 
and scope of the Logistics Park. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
 City staff recommends approving the Resolution to increase the size of the Logistics Park, increase the amount of 
authorized bonds that may be issued for the Logistics Park to $1 billion and fix the annual PILOT payment at an amount 
equal to $0.21 a sq. ft. 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-06-15A 
 
 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE AMENDMENT OF A MASTER 
RESOLUTION OF INTENT EVIDENCING THE CITY’S INTENT TO 
ISSUE ITS INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS FOR THE LOGISTICS 
PARK -- KANSAS CITY PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to 
further promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the 
state of Kansas; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 
to 12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain 
facilities (as defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities 
to private persons or entities; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Allen Group – Kansas City, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(“TAG”), has previously requested the City to issue its industrial revenue bonds in multiple 
series, the aggregate principal amount of all series not to exceed $500,000,000 (the “Bonds”), 
for the purpose of financing the cost of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping 
facilities within The Logistics Park-Kansas City to be located adjacent to the intermodal facility 
operated by the BNSF Railway Company, a Delaware Company, including real estate, buildings, 
improvements and equipment for industrial warehouses, distribution, flex and storage facilities 
and other supporting commercial uses (collectively, the “Logistics Park Projects”), located on 
approximately 560 acres of land surrounded by 191st Street to the south, Waverly Road to the 
east and 56 Highway to the west, and a parcel of land located on the northeast corner of 183rd 
Street and Waverly Road, all within the City (the “Logistics Park Boundaries”), and to lease the 
Logistics Park Projects to TAG all pursuant to the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Logistics Park Projects are expected to be constructed in phases with one 
or more buildings and facilities being constructed and financed at a time; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-0A on July 8, 2010 (the “Original 

Master Resolution of Intent”) evidencing the intent of the City to issue the Bonds for the 
purpose of financing the cost of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping the Logistics 
Park Projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 04-25-13A on April 25, 2013 (the 

“Assignment Resolution”) whereby the City consented to the assignment of all of TAG’s interest 
in the Master Resolution of Intent to Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC, a Kansas limited 
liability company (“ELHC”); and 

 
WHEREAS, ELHC has requested that the Logistics Park Boundaries be amended to 

include additional land and that the aggregate principal amount of authorized Bonds be 
increased; and 

 



WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the inclusion of additional land within the 
Logistics Park Boundaries and the increase in the aggregate principal amount of authorized 
Bonds; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Amendment of Logistics Park Boundaries.  The description of the 
Logistics Park Boundaries in the Original Master Resolution of Intent is hereby amended to 
include all land located within the following boundaries that is within the corporate limits of the 
City:  Highway 56 to the north, Interstate 35 to the south, Four Corners Road to the west and 
Gardner Road to the east. 

 
Section 2.  Increase in Par Amount of Bonds.  The Original Master Resolution of 

Intent is amended to provide that the aggregate principal amount of all series of Bonds shall 
not exceed $1,000,000,000. 

 
Section 3.  Amendment to Amount of Payment-in-Lieu of Tax.  The Original 

Master Resolution of Intent is amended to provide for a fixed annual payment-in-lieu of tax 
equal to $0.21 a sq. ft. based on the number of square feet of building constructed with the 
proceeds of each series of industrial revenue bonds. 

 
 Section 4.  Original Master Resolution of Intent to Remain in Effect.  Except as 
amended by this Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Original Master Resolution of Intent 
and the Assignment Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 
  
 Section 5.  Further Action.  SA Legal Advisors LC, Bond Counsel for the City, and 
officers and employees of the City, are authorized to work with the purchaser of each series of 
the Bonds, Edgerton Land, their respective counsel and others, to prepare for submission to 
and final action by the City all documents necessary to effect the authorization, issuance and 
sale of each series of the Bonds and other actions contemplated under the Original Master 
Resolution of Intent, the Assignment Resolution and this Resolution. 
 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the City Council of the City. 
 

ADOPTED April 9, 2015. 
 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 

       __________________________________ 
(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 



_________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 
 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
!

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com!

!
April!1,!2015!
!
Ms.!Beth!Linn!
City!Administrator!
City!of!Edgerton!
404!East!Nelson!
Edgerton,!KS!66021!
!
RE:$Cost)Benefit$Analysis$for$Proposed$LPKC$Expansion$
!
Dear!Beth:!
!
Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! projected!
property!tax!abatements!to!be!granted!by!the!City!within!in!the!proposed!expanded!
boundaries!of!Logistics!Park!Kansas!City!(LPKC).!The!purpose!of!this!analysis!is!to!
satisfy! the! City’s! requirement! pursuant! to! KSA! 12H1749d! or! KSA! 79H251(a)(1)! to!
undertake! a! costHbenefit! analysis! before! granting! a! property! tax! abatement.!
Consistent!with!the!City’s!revised!agreements!with!BNSF!and!Northpoint/Edgerton!
Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC),! we! assumed! that! individual! projects! within! the!
expanded! boundaries! of! the! district! would! receive! 10Hyear,! 100%! property! tax!
abatements! but! that! property! owners! would! make! paymentsHinHlieuHof! taxes! of!
$0.21!per!square!foot!of!building!area!per!year!during!the!abatement!period.!!
!
KSA!12H1749d(2)!requires!notification!of!anticipated!abatements!only!to!counties!or!
school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!
City,!Johnson!County!and!the!Gardner/Edgerton!schools.!We!have!not!calculated!the!
costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the! analysis! to!
include!“the!effect!of!the!exemption!on!state!revenues.”!Our!modeling!includes!such!
an!estimate.!
!
Our!modeling!relies!upon!a!number!of!key!inputs!from!NorthPoint/ELHC!related!to!
their! anticipated! buildHout! schedule! for! LPKC,! along! with! their! assumptions! on!
property! valuation,! building! costs,! employment! and!utility!usage.!Based!upon! this!
information,! our! modeling! shows! nearly! 18! million! square! feet! of! development!
across! nearly! 1,000! acres! in! LPKC! in!multiple! phases! over! a! 12Hyear! period.! The!
final!abatement!is!modeled!to!expire!in!2034.!!
!
Our!proprietary!costHbenefit!modeling!relies!on!a!number!of!key!assumptions!in!the!
calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson!County! and!USD!231.!
Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!
are!based!upon!dialogue!with!subject!matter!experts,! including!staff!of! the!Kansas!
Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!



  LPKC EXPANSION • 2 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

!

• An! evaluation! of! the! direct! costs! and! benefits! of! the! project.! Columbia’s!
model! does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputH
output!multipliers.!
!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!
maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!

• Direct!costs! to!affected!taxing! jurisdictions!as!estimated!by!Columbia!based!
upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or! conversations! with! key!
staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!Kansas.!

!

• Where!applicable,! reliance!upon!statistical!data!as! reported! in! the!2010!US!
Census.!

!

• The!use!of!a!discount!rate!comprised!of!two!components:!a!riskHfree!rate!of!
return!(the!current!yield!of!the!onHtheHrun!10Hyear!US!Treasury)!plus!a!risk!
premium!of!two!(2)!percent.!The!value!of!the!discount!rate!is!a!proxy!for!the!
opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!
property! and/or! sales! tax! revenues! that! would! be! generated! by! the!
development.!Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!
and! placed! them! in! an! alternative! investment! with! the! same! risk!
characteristics,!what!would!be!its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!
The!output!of!the!model!is!presented!as!the!net!present!value!benefit/(cost)!of!the!
LPKC!expansion!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!
abatement!on!each!project,! aggregated!across!all!phases!comprising! the!nearly!18!
million!square! feet!of! total!expected!development.!The!net!benefit! (or,! if!negative,!
cost)!of! the! tax!abatement! incentive! is!presented! in! today’s!dollars.!The!estimated!
impact!on!State!revenues!is!presented!in!nominal!(future!value)!terms.!
!
While! the!modeling! shows! a! significant! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! it! is!
important! to! note! that! the! vast!majority! of! this! net! benefit! is! reinvested! in! LPKC!
through!the!Public!Infrastructure!Fund.!
!
Importantly,!in!the!preparation!of!the!specific!analysis!of!the!proposed!expansion!of!
LPKC,!Columbia!has!relied!upon!the!information!provided!to!it!by!Northpoint/ELHC!
and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!
own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!
!
Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!
governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!
providing! to!ELHC!and!other!LPKC!property!owners.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!
net! present! value! benefit! to! the! agencies! affected! should! be! but! one! of! the!many!



  LPKC EXPANSION • 3 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!
provide!to!any!applicant.!
!
Thank! you! in! advance! for! your! thoughtful! consideration! of! the! analysis! attached.!
Please!let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!
!
Respectfully!submitted,!
COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!
!
!
Jeff!White!
Principal!
!
attachment$



            City of Edgerton, Kansas
              Cost-Benefit Analysis Results (LPKC Expansion)

PERIOD
Year New Sq Ft Cum. Sq Ft Acreage Cum. Acreage Benefits Costs NPV Benefit Benefits Costs NPV Benefit Benefits Costs NPV Benefit
2014 840,290       840,290         33.19       33.19               1,310,236    359,745      914,548         333,639     301,013     31,393         915,419     764,669      145,050       
2015 1,996,111    2,836,401      85.70       118.89             2,057,778    716,967      1,241,326      511,668     491,830     18,366         1,759,724  1,426,063   308,904       
2016 1,550,000    4,386,401      88.96       207.85             4,220,617    1,119,219   2,762,707      756,406     747,271     8,137           2,709,430  1,756,742   848,648       
2017 1,550,000    5,936,401      88.96       296.81             5,352,211     1,521,470   3,283,364      995,602     995,562     34                3,659,136  2,005,025   1,417,754    
2018 1,550,000    7,486,401      88.96       385.77             6,483,901    1,923,722   3,760,774      1,234,959  1,243,853  (7,335)          4,608,842  2,253,308   1,942,606    
2019 1,550,000    9,036,401      88.96       474.73             7,615,693    2,325,973   4,197,465      1,474,485  1,492,144  (14,013)        5,558,548  2,501,591   2,425,737    
2020 1,550,000    10,586,401    88.96       563.69             8,747,592    2,728,225   4,595,834      1,714,188  1,740,436  (20,040)        6,508,254  2,749,874   2,869,553    
2021 1,550,000    12,136,401    88.96       652.65             9,904,101    3,130,476   4,976,153      1,954,078  1,988,728  (25,455)        7,457,960  2,998,156   3,276,335    
2022 1,550,000    13,686,401    88.96       741.61             11,036,229   3,532,728   5,303,903      2,194,164  2,237,020  (30,293)        8,407,666  3,246,439   3,648,250    
2023 1,550,000    15,236,401    88.96       830.57             12,119,482   3,934,979   5,566,511      2,434,455  2,485,312  (34,589)        9,357,372  3,494,722   3,987,353    
2024 1,550,000    16,786,401    88.96       919.53             12,248,298  3,977,485   5,412,501      2,453,145  2,529,902  (50,231)        9,391,659  3,035,771   4,159,355    
2025 1,000,000    17,786,401    57.39       976.92             11,592,928   3,879,700   4,856,742      2,365,512  2,447,160  (51,411)        9,159,558  2,447,160   4,226,556    
2026 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             9,785,354    3,477,448   3,821,669      2,072,011  2,145,718  (44,656)        8,209,852  2,145,718   3,673,980    
2027 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             8,653,856    3,075,197   3,252,047      1,832,978  1,897,435  (37,575)        7,260,146  1,897,435   3,126,162    
2028 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             7,522,266    2,672,946   2,719,988      1,593,792  1,649,152  (31,052)        6,310,440  1,649,152   2,614,520    
2029 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             6,390,579    2,270,694   2,223,465      1,354,444  1,400,870  (25,055)        5,360,734  1,400,870   2,137,103    
2030 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             5,258,790    1,868,443   1,760,551      1,114,928  1,152,587  (19,556)        4,411,028   1,152,587   1,692,054    
2031 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             4,126,895    1,466,191   1,329,413      875,234     904,304     (14,525)        3,461,322  904,304      1,277,607    
2032 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             2,994,888    1,063,940   928,310         635,354     656,021     (9,936)          2,511,616   656,021      892,084       
2033 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             1,862,764    661,688      555,587         395,279     407,738     (5,763)          1,561,910  407,738      533,890       
2034 -              17,786,401    -          976.92             730,516       259,437      209,669         154,998     159,455     (1,984)          612,204     159,455      201,511       

TOTALS 17,786,401 n/a 976.92     n/a 63,672,526    (365,538)      45,405,010  

Projected Jobs Created through 2034 2,591 PILOT per square foot 0.21$           
Projected New Residents to:
  Edgerton 156 Origination Fee per square foot 0.41$           
  Johnson County 214
  USD 231 214 Impact of Exemption on State of Kansas Revenues Through 2034 (1,882,003)

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC • APRIL 2015

CITY OF EDGERTONPROJECTED DEVELOPMENT RATE JOHNSON COUNTY

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS

USD 231



            City of Edgerton, Kansas
              Cost-Benefit Analysis Results (LPKC Expansion)

PERIOD
Year
2014 100% 100% $1,056,026 $109,116
2015 100% 100% 1,838,200       75,246         
2016 100% 100% 2,909,104       82,396         
2017 100% 100% 3,980,007       82,396         
2018 100% 100% 5,050,911       82,396         
2019 100% 100% 6,121,815       82,396         
2020 100% 100% 7,192,719       82,396         
2021 100% 100% 8,263,622       82,396         
2022 100% 100% 9,334,526       82,396         
2023 100% 100% 10,405,430     82,396         
2024 100% 100% 10,585,348     82,396         
2025 100% 100% 10,329,030     53,159         
2026 100% 100% 9,258,127       -               
2027 100% 100% 8,187,223       -               
2028 100% 100% 7,116,319       -               
2029 100% 100% 6,045,415       -               
2030 100% 100% 4,974,512       -               
2031 100% 100% 3,903,608       -               
2032 100% 100% 2,832,704       -               
2033 100% 100% 1,761,800       -               
2034 100% 100% 690,897          -               

TOTALS $121,837,343 $979,087

• Data in nominal dollars
• Final abated project commences in 2025
• "Net Property Tax Abatement $" column includes the value of PILOT payments

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC • APRIL 2015

NOTES:

Property Tax Abatement % Constr. Sales Tax Abatement % Net Property Tax Abatement $
INCENTIVES SUMMARY

Constr Sales Tax Abatement $



CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Council Meeting Date:   April 9, 2015 
 
Agenda Item: Resolution Authorizing First Amendments to Performance Agreements 
 
Subject:   ELHC I, IV, XI and XII 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has previously issued industrial revenue bonds for projects identified as ELHC I, ELHC IV, ELHC XI 
and ELHC XII.  In each Performance Agreement, the amount of the annual PILOT payment was set at 25% of the taxes 
that would have been due but for the abatement. 
 
 The City has approved an amended Master Resolution of Intent and an amended Project Agreement and Finance 
Plan for the Logistics Park that provides that the amount of the annual PILOT payment shall be a fixed amount equal to 
$0.21 a sq. ft. based off of the size of each building constructed with each series of industrial revenue bonds. 
 
 The City is holding a public hearing on the amendment to each of the Performance Agreements.  The Resolution 
authorizes the City to enter into a First Amendment to Performance Agreement for each of the ELHC I, ELHC IV, ELHC 
XI and ELHC XII projects. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
 City staff recommends approving the Resolution to authorize the amendments to each of the Performance 
Agreements to fix the annual PILOT payment at an amount equal to $0.21 a sq. ft. for the remaining abatement term of 
each of the projects. 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-09-15B 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO EXECUTE AND 
DELIVER A FIRST AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE ELHC I, ELHC IV, ELHC XI AND ELHC XII PROJECTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to 
further promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the 
state of Kansas; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 
to 12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain 
facilities (as defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities 
to private persons or entities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $25,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds 
(ELHC I, LLC Project), Series 2013, for the purpose of constructing a project for the benefit of 
ELHC I, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“ELHC I”), and in connection with the issuance 
of the bonds, the City entered into a Performance Agreement with ELHC I dated as of 
September 1, 2013 (the “ELHC I Performance Agreement”), which required ELHC I to make 
annual payments-in-lieu of tax equal to 25% of the amount of taxes that would have been due 
but for such tax abatement; and 

 
WHEREAS, ELHC I, with the consent of the City, assigned its interest in the ELHC I 

Performance Agreement to Eagle Exchange Company, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 
(“Eagle Exchange”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $25,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(ELHC IV, LLC Project), Series 2014, for the purpose of constructing a project for the benefit of 
ELHC IV, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“ELHC IV”), and in connection with the 
issuance of the bonds, the City entered into a Performance Agreement with ELHC IV dated as of 
May 1, 2014 (the “ELHC IV Performance Agreement”), which required ELHC IV to make annual 
payments-in-lieu of tax equal to 25% of the amount of taxes that would have been due but for 
such tax abatement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $34,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(ELHC XI, LLC Project), Series 2015, for the purpose of constructing a project for the benefit of 
ELHC XI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“ELHC XI”), and in connection with the 
issuance of the bonds, the City entered into a Performance Agreement with ELHC XI dated as of 
February 1, 2015 (the “ELHC XI Performance Agreement”), which required ELHC XI to make 
annual payments-in-lieu of tax equal to 25% of the amount of taxes that would have been due 
but for such tax abatement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $29,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(ELHC XII, LLC Project), Series 2015, for the purpose of constructing a project for the benefit of 
ELHC XII, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“ELHC XII”), and in connection with the 
issuance of the bonds, the City entered into a Performance Agreement with ELHC XII dated as 



of February 1, 2015 (the “ELHC XII Performance Agreement”), which required ELHC I to make 
annual payments-in-lieu of tax equal to 25% of the amount of taxes that would have been due 
but for such tax abatement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the ELHC I Performance Agreement, the ELHC IV 

Performance Agreement, the ELHC XI Performance Agreement and the ELHC XII Performance 
Agreement (collectively, the “Performance Agreements”) to amend the amount of the annual 
payment-in-lieu of tax payments; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  First Amendment to Performance Agreements.  The City approves 
entering into a First Amendment to Performance Agreement with respect to each of the 
Performance Agreements (the “First Amendments”) to provide that the annual payment-in-lieu of 
tax payment be equal to $0.21 a sq. ft. based on the number of square feet of building 
constructed with the proceeds of each series of industrial revenue bonds.  All references to a 
payment-in-lieu of tax equal to 25% shall be deleted.  With respect to the ELHC I Performance 
Agreement, the amendment shall apply to only the last 9 years of the term of the abatement. 
 
 Section 2.  Execution of Documents.  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized to 
enter into the First Amendments, all of which shall be approved by the Mayor, the Mayor’s 
signature thereon being conclusive evidence of his approval thereof.  The City Clerk of the City is 
hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to the First Amendments. 
 
 Section 3.  Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents 
of the City are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and 
execute such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to 
carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform 
the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendments. 
 
 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the City Council.  
 
 ADOPTED this 9th day of April, 2015. 
 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 

       __________________________________ 
(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 



Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 
 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!

March!27,!2015!

!

Ms.!Beth!Linn!

City!Administrator!

City!of!Edgerton!

404!East!Nelson!

Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!

!

RE:$Revised$Cost-Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$I,$LLC$
!

Dear!Beth:!

!

Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! revised! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! the!

projected!property!tax!abatement!to!be!granted!by!the!City!to!applicant!ELHC!I,!LLC,!

as!subsequently!assigned!to!Flexsteel!Industries,!Inc.,!related!to!the!construction!of!a!

new!500,000!square!foot!warehousing!facility!in!Logistics!Park!Kansas!City!(LPKC).!

The!purpose!of!this!analysis!is!to!satisfy!the!City’s!requirement!pursuant!to!KSA!12H

1749d!or!KSA!79H251(a)(1)! to!undertake!a! costHbenefit! analysis!before!granting!a!

property! tax! abatement.! This! revised! analysis! assumes! the! City! grants! a! 100%!

property!tax!abatement!for!10!years!with!the!applicant!paying!an!annual!paymentH

inHlieuHofHtaxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!

!

KSA!12H1749d(2)!requires!notification!of!anticipated!abatements!only!to!counties!or!

school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!

City,!Johnson!County!and!the!Gardner/Edgerton!schools.!We!have!not!calculated!the!

costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the! analysis! to!

include!“the!effect!of!the!exemption!on!state!revenues.”!Our!modeling!includes!such!

an!estimate.!

!

Our!proprietary!costHbenefit!modeling!relies!on!a!number!of!key!assumptions!in!the!

calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson!County! and!USD!231.!

Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!

are!based!upon!dialogue!with!subject!matter!experts,! including!staff!of! the!Kansas!

Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!

!

• An! evaluation! of! the! direct! costs! and! benefits! of! the! project.! Columbia’s!

model! does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputH

output!multipliers.!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!

maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!



  CBA for ELHC I, LLC • 2 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

• Direct! costs! to! the! City,! the! County,! the! school! district! and! the! State! as!

estimated! by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis!

and/or! conversations!with!key! staff!members!within! those!agencies!and!at!

the!State!of!Kansas.!

• Where!applicable,! reliance!upon!statistical!data!as! reported! in! the!2010!US!

Census.!

• The!use!of!a!discount!rate!comprised!of!two!components:!a!riskHfree!rate!of!

return!(the!current!yield!of!the!onHtheHrun!10Hyear!US!Treasury)!plus!a!risk!

premium!of!two!(2)!percent.!The!value!of!the!discount!rate!is!a!proxy!for!the!

opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!

property! and/or! sales! tax! revenues! that! would! be! generated! by! the!

development.!Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!

and! placed! them! in! an! alternative! investment! with! the! same! risk!

characteristics,!what!would!be!its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!

The!output!of!the!model!is!presented!as!the!net!present!value!benefit/(cost)!of!the!

project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!abatement!

on! each! project.! The! net! benefit! (or,! if! negative,! cost)! of! the! incentive! package! is!

presented!in!today’s!dollars.!The!estimated!impact!on!State!revenues!is!presented!in!

nominal! (future! value)! terms.!We! also! provide! an! estimated! future! value! project!

contribution! to! the! City’s! Public! Infrastructure! Fund! (PIF).! While! the! modeling!

shows!a!significant!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!

the!majority!of!this!net!benefit!is!reinvested!in!LPKC!through!the!PIF.!

!

In! the! preparation! of! this! costHbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!

information! provided! to! it! by! applicant! and! has! not! independently! verified! or!

validated!these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!

these!data.!

!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!

governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!

providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!

the!agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!

decision!about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!

!

Thank! you! in! advance! for! your! thoughtful! consideration! of! the! analysis! attached.!

Please!let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!

!

Respectfully!submitted,!

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!

!

!

Jeff!White!

Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 3/28/15

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: REVISED 3/27/15 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC I, LLC (as Assignor)
Firm Address: 6300 N Revere Drive, Suite 225

Kansas City, MO 64151

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson
816.888.7380

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School Year Year Year

2 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
3 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
4 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
5 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
6 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
7 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
8 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
9 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734

10 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734
11 100 460,399 100 0 0 0 23,004 12,164 47,734

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 374,269 134,992 239,277 221,523 82,743 81,617 1,126 1,043 322,601 278,544 44,057 40,788
3 373,168 134,992 238,176 212,166 81,409 81,617 (208) (185) 322,601 278,544 44,057 39,246
4 373,187 134,992 238,195 204,159 81,449 81,617 (168) (144) 322,601 278,544 44,057 37,762
5 373,208 134,992 238,216 196,456 81,490 81,617 (127) (105) 322,601 278,544 44,057 36,334
6 373,229 134,992 238,237 189,044 81,534 81,617 (83) (66) 322,601 278,544 44,057 34,960
7 373,251 134,992 238,259 181,913 81,580 81,617 (37) (29) 322,601 278,544 44,057 33,638
8 373,275 134,992 238,283 175,051 81,628 81,617 11 8 322,601 278,544 44,057 32,366
9 373,300 134,992 238,308 168,450 81,678 81,617 61 43 322,601 278,544 44,057 31,142

10 373,326 134,992 238,334 162,097 81,731 81,617 114 78 322,601 278,544 44,057 29,964
11 373,353 134,992 238,361 155,986 81,787 81,617 170 111 322,601 278,544 44,057 28,831

3,733,566 1,349,920 2,383,646 1,866,846 817,029 816,169 859 754 3,226,006 2,785,436 440,570 345,031

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 130

Number of new residents:
   City 3
   County 5
   School District 5

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 1,760,000$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (57,041)$                        

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!

March!27,!2015!

!

Ms.!Beth!Linn!

City!Administrator!

City!of!Edgerton!

404!East!Nelson!

Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!

!

RE:$Revised$Cost-Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$IV,$LLC$
!

Dear!Beth:!

!

Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! revised! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! the!

projected!property! tax! abatement! to!be! granted!by! the!City! to! applicant!ELHC! IV,!

LLC,!related!to!the!construction!of!a!new!574,111!square!foot!warehousing!facility!in!

Logistics!Park!Kansas!City!(LPKC).!The!purpose!of!this!analysis!is!to!satisfy!the!City’s!

requirement!pursuant! to!KSA!12H1749d!or!KSA!79H251(a)(1)! to!undertake!a! costH

benefit! analysis! before! granting! a! property! tax! abatement.! This! revised! analysis!

assumes! the! City! grants! a! 100%! property! tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the!

applicant!paying!an!annual!paymentHinHlieuHofHtaxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!

on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!

!

KSA!12H1749d(2)!requires!notification!of!anticipated!abatements!only!to!counties!or!

school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!

City,!Johnson!County!and!the!Gardner/Edgerton!schools.!We!have!not!calculated!the!

costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the! analysis! to!

include!“the!effect!of!the!exemption!on!state!revenues.”!Our!modeling!includes!such!

an!estimate.!

!

Our!proprietary!costHbenefit!modeling!relies!on!a!number!of!key!assumptions!in!the!

calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson!County! and!USD!231.!

Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!

are!based!upon!dialogue!with!subject!matter!experts,! including!staff!of! the!Kansas!

Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!

!

• An! evaluation! of! the! direct! costs! and! benefits! of! the! project.! Columbia’s!

model! does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputH

output!multipliers.!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!

maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!



  CBA for ELHC IV, LLC • 2 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

• Direct! costs! to! the! City,! the! County,! the! school! district! and! the! State! as!

estimated! by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis!

and/or! conversations!with!key! staff!members!within! those!agencies!and!at!

the!State!of!Kansas.!

• Where!applicable,! reliance!upon!statistical!data!as! reported! in! the!2010!US!

Census.!

• The!use!of!a!discount!rate!comprised!of!two!components:!a!riskHfree!rate!of!

return!(the!current!yield!of!the!onHtheHrun!10Hyear!US!Treasury)!plus!a!risk!

premium!of!two!(2)!percent.!The!value!of!the!discount!rate!is!a!proxy!for!the!

opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!

property! and/or! sales! tax! revenues! that! would! be! generated! by! the!

development.!Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!

and! placed! them! in! an! alternative! investment! with! the! same! risk!

characteristics,!what!would!be!its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!

The!output!of!the!model!is!presented!as!the!net!present!value!benefit/(cost)!of!the!

project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!abatement!

on! each! project.! The! net! benefit! (or,! if! negative,! cost)! of! the! incentive! package! is!

presented!in!today’s!dollars.!The!estimated!impact!on!State!revenues!is!presented!in!

nominal! (future! value)! terms.!We! also! provide! an! estimated! future! value! project!

contribution! to! the! City’s! Public! Infrastructure! Fund! (PIF).! While! the! modeling!

shows!a!significant!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!

the!majority!of!this!net!benefit!is!reinvested!in!LPKC!through!the!PIF.!

!

In! the! preparation! of! this! costHbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!

information! provided! to! it! by! applicant! and! has! not! independently! verified! or!

validated!these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!

these!data.!

!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!

governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!

providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!

the!agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!

decision!about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!

!

Thank! you! in! advance! for! your! thoughtful! consideration! of! the! analysis! attached.!

Please!let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!

!

Respectfully!submitted,!

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!

!

!

Jeff!White!

Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 3/28/15

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 12/30/13 (REVISED 3/27/15) Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC IV, LLC
Firm Address: 6300 N Revere Drive, Suite 225

Kansas City, MO 64151

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson
816.888.7380

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School Year Year Year

2 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
3 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
4 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
5 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
6 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
7 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
8 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
9 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810

10 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810
11 100 476,462 100 0 0 0 26,414 13,967 54,810

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 414,893 139,449 275,444 255,007 87,234 86,787 447 414 340,879 290,482 50,397 46,657
3 413,792 139,449 274,343 244,383 85,907 86,787 (879) (783) 340,879 290,482 50,397 44,893
4 413,811 139,449 274,362 235,158 85,955 86,787 (832) (713) 340,879 290,482 50,397 43,196
5 413,831 139,449 274,382 226,283 86,005 86,787 (782) (645) 340,879 290,482 50,397 41,562
6 413,853 139,449 274,404 217,743 86,057 86,787 (730) (579) 340,879 290,482 50,397 39,991
7 413,875 139,449 274,426 209,527 86,112 86,787 (675) (515) 340,879 290,482 50,397 38,478
8 413,899 139,449 274,450 201,621 86,170 86,787 (617) (453) 340,879 290,482 50,397 37,023
9 413,924 139,449 274,475 194,014 86,230 86,787 (556) (393) 340,879 290,482 50,397 35,623

10 413,950 139,449 274,501 186,696 86,294 86,787 (493) (335) 340,879 290,482 50,397 34,276
11 413,977 139,449 274,528 179,654 86,361 86,787 (426) (279) 340,879 290,482 50,397 32,980

4,139,805 1,394,491 2,745,314 2,150,085 862,325 867,867 (5,542) (4,281) 3,408,791 2,904,823 503,968 394,681

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 150

Number of new residents:
   City 3
   County 6
   School District 6

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 2,020,871$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (59,031)$                        

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!

March!27,!2015!

!

Ms.!Beth!Linn!

City!Administrator!

City!of!Edgerton!

404!East!Nelson!

Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!

!

RE:$Revised$Cost-Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$XI,$LLC$
!

Dear!Beth:!

!

Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! revised! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! the!

projected!property! tax! abatement! to! be! granted!by! the!City! to! applicant!ELHC!XI,!

LLC,!related!to!the!construction!of!a!new!765,160!square!foot!warehousing!facility!in!

Logistics!Park!Kansas!City!(LPKC).!The!purpose!of!this!analysis!is!to!satisfy!the!City’s!

requirement!pursuant! to!KSA!12H1749d!or!KSA!79H251(a)(1)! to!undertake!a! costH

benefit! analysis! before! granting! a! property! tax! abatement.! This! revised! analysis!

assumes! the! City! grants! a! 100%! property! tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the!

applicant!paying!an!annual!paymentHinHlieuHofHtaxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!

on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!

!

KSA!12H1749d(2)!requires!notification!of!anticipated!abatements!only!to!counties!or!

school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!

City,!Johnson!County!and!the!Gardner/Edgerton!schools.!We!have!not!calculated!the!

costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the! analysis! to!

include!“the!effect!of!the!exemption!on!state!revenues.”!Our!modeling!includes!such!

an!estimate.!

!

Our!proprietary!costHbenefit!modeling!relies!on!a!number!of!key!assumptions!in!the!

calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson!County! and!USD!231.!

Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!

are!based!upon!dialogue!with!subject!matter!experts,! including!staff!of! the!Kansas!

Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!

!

• An! evaluation! of! the! direct! costs! and! benefits! of! the! project.! Columbia’s!

model! does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputH

output!multipliers.!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!

maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!



  CBA for ELHC XI, LLC • 2 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

• Direct! costs! to! the! City,! the! County,! the! school! district! and! the! State! as!

estimated! by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis!

and/or! conversations!with!key! staff!members!within! those!agencies!and!at!

the!State!of!Kansas.!

• Where!applicable,! reliance!upon!statistical!data!as! reported! in! the!2010!US!

Census.!

• The!use!of!a!discount!rate!comprised!of!two!components:!a!riskHfree!rate!of!

return!(the!current!yield!of!the!onHtheHrun!10Hyear!US!Treasury)!plus!a!risk!

premium!of!two!(2)!percent.!The!value!of!the!discount!rate!is!a!proxy!for!the!

opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!

property! and/or! sales! tax! revenues! that! would! be! generated! by! the!

development.!Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!

and! placed! them! in! an! alternative! investment! with! the! same! risk!

characteristics,!what!would!be!its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!

The!output!of!the!model!is!presented!as!the!net!present!value!benefit/(cost)!of!the!

project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!abatement!

on! each! project.! The! net! benefit! (or,! if! negative,! cost)! of! the! incentive! package! is!

presented!in!today’s!dollars.!The!estimated!impact!on!State!revenues!is!presented!in!

nominal! (future! value)! terms.!We! also! provide! an! estimated! future! value! project!

contribution! to! the! City’s! Public! Infrastructure! Fund! (PIF).! While! the! modeling!

shows!a!significant!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!

the!majority!of!this!net!benefit!is!reinvested!in!LPKC!through!the!PIF.!

!

In! the! preparation! of! this! costHbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!

information! provided! to! it! by! applicant! and! has! not! independently! verified! or!

validated!these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!

these!data.!

!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!

governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!

providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!

the!agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!

decision!about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!

!

Thank! you! in! advance! for! your! thoughtful! consideration! of! the! analysis! attached.!

Please!let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!

!

Respectfully!submitted,!

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!

!

!

Jeff!White!

Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 3/28/15

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 11/11/2014 (REVISED 3/27/15) Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC XI, LLC
Firm Address: 5015 NW Canal St., Suite 200

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School Year Year Year

2 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
3 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
4 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
5 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
6 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
7 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
8 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
9 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049

10 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049
11 100 630,604 100 0 0 0 35,204 18,615 73,049

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 552,359 189,460 362,899 335,973 114,913 112,216 2,696 2,496 449,827 381,926 67,901 62,863
3 551,208 189,460 361,748 322,243 113,510 112,216 1,294 1,153 449,827 381,926 67,901 60,485
4 551,246 189,460 361,787 310,091 113,566 112,216 1,349 1,157 449,827 381,926 67,901 58,198
5 551,287 189,460 361,827 298,399 113,624 112,216 1,408 1,161 449,827 381,926 67,901 55,998
6 551,330 189,460 361,870 287,149 113,685 112,216 1,469 1,165 449,827 381,926 67,901 53,880
7 551,375 189,460 361,915 276,325 113,749 112,216 1,533 1,170 449,827 381,926 67,901 51,843
8 551,422 189,460 361,962 265,911 113,817 112,216 1,600 1,176 449,827 381,926 67,901 49,882
9 551,471 189,460 362,012 255,891 113,887 112,216 1,671 1,181 449,827 381,926 67,901 47,996

10 551,523 189,460 362,064 246,250 113,962 112,216 1,745 1,187 449,827 381,926 67,901 46,181
11 551,578 189,460 362,118 236,974 114,040 112,216 1,823 1,193 449,827 381,926 67,901 44,435

5,514,799 1,894,597 3,620,202 2,835,203 1,138,751 1,122,162 16,589 13,040 4,498,266 3,819,260 679,006 531,761

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 230

Number of new residents:
   City 6
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 2,693,363$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (78,129)$                        

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!

March!27,!2015!

!

Ms.!Beth!Linn!

City!Administrator!

City!of!Edgerton!

404!East!Nelson!

Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!

!

RE:$Revised$Cost-Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$XII,$LLC$
!

Dear!Beth:!

!

Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! revised! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! the!

projected!property! tax!abatement! to!be!granted!by! the!City! to!applicant!ELHC!XII,!

LLC,!related!to!the!construction!of!a!new!657,000!square!foot!warehousing!facility!in!

Logistics!Park!Kansas!City!(LPKC).!The!purpose!of!this!analysis!is!to!satisfy!the!City’s!

requirement!pursuant! to!KSA!12H1749d!or!KSA!79H251(a)(1)! to!undertake!a! costH

benefit! analysis! before! granting! a! property! tax! abatement.! This! revised! analysis!

assumes! the! City! grants! a! 100%! property! tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the!

applicant!paying!an!annual!paymentHinHlieuHofHtaxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!

on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!

!

KSA!12H1749d(2)!requires!notification!of!anticipated!abatements!only!to!counties!or!

school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!

City,!Johnson!County!and!the!Gardner/Edgerton!schools.!We!have!not!calculated!the!

costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the! analysis! to!

include!“the!effect!of!the!exemption!on!state!revenues.”!Our!modeling!includes!such!

an!estimate.!

!

Our!proprietary!costHbenefit!modeling!relies!on!a!number!of!key!assumptions!in!the!

calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson!County! and!USD!231.!

Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!

are!based!upon!dialogue!with!subject!matter!experts,! including!staff!of! the!Kansas!

Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!

!

• An! evaluation! of! the! direct! costs! and! benefits! of! the! project.! Columbia’s!

model! does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputH

output!multipliers.!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!

maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!



  CBA for ELHC XII, LLC • 2 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

• Direct! costs! to! the! City,! the! County,! the! school! district! and! the! State! as!

estimated! by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis!

and/or! conversations!with!key! staff!members!within! those!agencies!and!at!

the!State!of!Kansas.!

• Where!applicable,! reliance!upon!statistical!data!as! reported! in! the!2010!US!

Census.!

• The!use!of!a!discount!rate!comprised!of!two!components:!a!riskHfree!rate!of!

return!(the!current!yield!of!the!onHtheHrun!10Hyear!US!Treasury)!plus!a!risk!

premium!of!two!(2)!percent.!The!value!of!the!discount!rate!is!a!proxy!for!the!

opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!

property! and/or! sales! tax! revenues! that! would! be! generated! by! the!

development.!Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!

and! placed! them! in! an! alternative! investment! with! the! same! risk!

characteristics,!what!would!be!its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!

The!output!of!the!model!is!presented!as!the!net!present!value!benefit/(cost)!of!the!

project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!abatement!

on! each! project.! The! net! benefit! (or,! if! negative,! cost)! of! the! incentive! package! is!

presented!in!today’s!dollars.!The!estimated!impact!on!State!revenues!is!presented!in!

nominal! (future! value)! terms.!We! also! provide! an! estimated! future! value! project!

contribution! to! the! City’s! Public! Infrastructure! Fund! (PIF).! While! the! modeling!

shows!a!significant!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!

the!majority!of!this!net!benefit!is!reinvested!in!LPKC!through!the!PIF.!

!

In! the! preparation! of! this! costHbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!

information! provided! to! it! by! applicant! and! has! not! independently! verified! or!

validated!these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!

these!data.!

!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!

governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!

providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!

the!agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!

decision!about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!

!

Thank! you! in! advance! for! your! thoughtful! consideration! of! the! analysis! attached.!

Please!let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!

!

Respectfully!submitted,!

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!

!

!

Jeff!White!

Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 3/28/15

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 11/11/2014 (REVISED 3/27/15) Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC XII, LLC
Firm Address: 5015 NW Canal St., Suite 200

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School Year Year Year

2 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
3 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
4 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
5 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
6 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
7 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
8 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
9 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723

10 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723
11 100 552,411 100 0 0 0 30,227 15,983 62,723

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 477,878 167,762 310,116 287,106 100,809 100,743 65 60 394,478 336,903 57,575 53,303
3 476,727 167,762 308,965 275,224 99,406 100,743 (1,337) (1,191) 394,478 336,903 57,575 51,287
4 476,766 167,762 309,004 264,850 99,461 100,743 (1,282) (1,099) 394,478 336,903 57,575 49,348
5 476,807 167,762 309,044 254,869 99,520 100,743 (1,224) (1,009) 394,478 336,903 57,575 47,482
6 476,850 167,762 309,087 245,265 99,581 100,743 (1,163) (922) 394,478 336,903 57,575 45,686
7 476,894 167,762 309,132 236,025 99,645 100,743 (1,098) (839) 394,478 336,903 57,575 43,959
8 476,942 167,762 309,179 227,134 99,712 100,743 (1,031) (757) 394,478 336,903 57,575 42,296
9 476,991 167,762 309,229 218,581 99,783 100,743 (960) (679) 394,478 336,903 57,575 40,697

10 477,043 167,762 309,281 210,351 99,857 100,743 (886) (603) 394,478 336,903 57,575 39,158
11 477,098 167,762 309,335 202,432 99,935 100,743 (808) (529) 394,478 336,903 57,575 37,677

4,769,996 1,677,624 3,092,372 2,421,836 997,710 1,007,433 (9,724) (7,567) 3,944,779 3,369,032 575,747 450,893

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 195

Number of new residents:
   City 6
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 2,312,640$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (68,441)$                        

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0



 

 

 
 

2016 BUDGET CALENDAR 
 
Each year the City of Edgerton adopts a budget for the following fiscal year. Staff has prepared the 
following calendar of events to assist staff and the governing body during the annual budget process.  

Date Responsible Party Task 
April 1 Accountant Turn on CIC Budget Preparation for 2016 Budget 

April 1 – April 30 City Administrator, Accountant, PW 
Superintendent, Utility Superintendent, 
Community Development Director 

Vehicle & Equipment Budget development;  
Capital Improvement Plan Development 

May 1 – May 31 City Administrator, PW Superintendent, 
Utility Superintendent, Accountant, 
Community Development Director 

Develop Department Budgets. All Budgets and 
Requests for Additional Personnel due June 1 

May 14 City Administrator, City Council City Council Meeting:  
Presentation by ETC Institute of Final Results of 
2015 Citizen Survey 

May 16 City Administrator, City Council  Governing Body Policy Governance Session 
(Development of Ends Policies) 

May 28 City Administrator, Accountant, PW 
Superintendent, Utility Superintendent, 
Community Development Director 

Budget Work Session: Projected Revenues; 
Legislative Changes; Citizen Survey Results Capital 
Improvements; Vehicle and Equipment 
Replacement 

June 1 – June 24 City Administrator, Accountant Review Submitted Budget Requests and Develop 
Recommended Budget 

June 25 City Administrator, City Council  Budget Work Session: 
Present Recommended General Fund Budget 

July 9 City Administrator, City Council  Budget Work Session:  
Present Recommended Utility Fund Budgets, All 
Other Fund Budgets and Vehicles/Equipment 

July 10 – July 23 City Administrator, Accountant Finalize Budget to Prepare Hearing Notice 

July 24 City Clerk Send Public Hearing Notice to Gardner News  

July 29  Public Hearing Notice Published in Gardner News 

August 13 City Administrator, City Council City Council Meeting:  
Conduct Formal Budget Hearing and Adopt Budget 

August 25 City Clerk Certify Budget to County Clerk 
 


	Agenda 04-09-2015
	03-26-2015 Minutes
	Agreement with Jo County Re: CARS project
	Waverly Road Guaranteed Maximum Price
	Public Hearing and Resolution No. 04-09-15A Amending Master Resolution of Intent
	Public Hearing and Resolution No. 04-0915B First Amendments to Performance Agreements
	2016 Budget Calendar

	Submitting City: Edgerton
	Number 1 Priority  YN: Y
	Project Location: Edgerton Rd (207th to 199th); 207th Street (1/2 west of Edgerton Rd to BNSF Railroad)
	Joint Project With: Johnson County
	Administrating City: Johnson County
	Contact Name  Title: Don Hovey
	County Commission Districts: 6
	Estimated Project Schedule  Start Date moyr: June 2015
	Completion Date moyr: August 2015
	Current Average Daily Traffic ADT: 797
	Accident History Prior 3 Years: 0
	Current Level of Service LOS System Management Projects Only: N/A
	Sufficiency Rating Bridge Projects 1: N/A
	Pavement Condition Good: Off
	Fair: Off
	Poor: On
	Existing Facility: Unimproved, 2 lane, paved section line roads without shoulders: Edgerton Rd (207th to 199th) and 207th St (1/2 west of Edgerton Rd to BNSF Railroad)
	ProjectScope: 0.80 miles of 2" overlay of Edgerton Rd, 0.46 miles of 4" overlay on 207th St west of Edgerton Rd, 0.34 miles of 2" overlay on 207th east of Edgerton Rd
	1: 0
	2: 0
	3: 0
	4: $169,678
	5: 0
	ProjectCost: $169,678
	Sum4-5: $169,678
	FedAid: 0
	1_2: 0
	2_2: $169,678
	1_3: 0
	2_3: $84,839
	City Name: Johnson County
	Funding: 25% ($42,419.50)
	City Name_2: 
	Funding_2: 


